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Accelerated Return Notes® Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks
■   
Maturity of approximately 14 months
■   
3-to-1 upside exposure to increases in the Basket, subject to a capped return of [12% to 16%]
■   
The Basket will be comprised of the common stocks of General Dynamics Corporation, Lockheed Martin
Corporation, and Raytheon Company. Each Basket Stock will be given an approximate equal weight
■   
1-to-1 downside exposure to decreases in the Basket, with 100% of your investment at risk
■   
All payments occur at maturity and are subject to the credit risk of Bank of America Corporation
■   
No periodic interest payments
■   
In addition to the underwriting discount set forth below, the notes include a hedging-related charge of $0.075 per unit.
See �Structuring the Notes�
■   
Limited secondary market liquidity, with no exchange listing
The notes are being issued by Bank of America Corporation (�BAC�). There are important differences between
the notes and a conventional debt security, including different investment risks and certain additional costs. See
�Risk Factors� and �Additional Risk Factors� beginning on page TS-6 of this term sheet and �Risk Factors�
beginning on page PS-6 of product supplement STOCK ARN-1.
The initial estimated value of the notes as of the pricing date is expected to be between $9.42 and $9.69 per unit,
which is less than the public offering price listed below. See �Summary� on the following page, �Risk Factors�
beginning on page TS-6 of this term sheet and �Structuring the Notes� on page TS-15 of this term sheet for additional
information. The actual value of your notes at any time will reflect many factors and cannot be predicted with
accuracy.
_________________________
None of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�), any state securities commission, or any other regulatory
body has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this Note Prospectus (as defined below) is
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truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
_________________________

Per Unit Total
Public offering price(1) $10.00 $  
Underwriting
discount(1)

$0.20 $  

Proceeds, before
expenses, to BAC

$9.80 $  

(1)   

For any purchase of 500,000 units or more in a single transaction by an individual investor or in combined
transactions with the investor's household in this offering, the public offering price and the underwriting discount
will be $9.95 per unit and $0.15 per unit, respectively.  See �Supplement to the Plan of Distribution; Conflicts of
Interest� below.

The notes:
Are Not FDIC

Insured
Are Not Bank
Guaranteed

May Lose Value

Merrill Lynch & Co.
September     , 2016
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
Summary
The Accelerated Return Notes® Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017 (the
�notes�) are our senior unsecured debt securities. The notes are not guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or secured by collateral. The notes will rank equally with all of our other unsecured and
unsubordinated debt. Any payments due on the notes, including any repayment of principal, will be subject to the
credit risk of BAC. The notes provide you a leveraged return, subject to a cap, if the Ending Value of the Market
Measure, which is the basket of three defense industry stocks described below (the �Basket�), is greater than its Starting
Value. If the Ending Value is less than the Starting Value, you will lose all or a portion of the principal amount of
your notes. Payments on the notes, including the amount you receive at maturity, will be calculated based on the
$10 principal amount per unit and will depend on the performance of the Basket, subject to our credit risk. See �Terms
of the Notes� below.
The Basket will be comprised of the common stocks of General Dynamics Corporation, Lockheed Martin Corporation
and Raytheon Company (each, a �Basket Stock�).  On the pricing date, each Basket Stock will be given
an approximately equal weight.
The economic terms of the notes (including the Capped Value) are based on our internal funding rate, which is the rate
we would pay to borrow funds through the issuance of market-linked notes and the economic terms of certain related
hedging arrangements. Our internal funding rate is typically lower than the rate we would pay when we issue
conventional fixed or floating rate debt securities.  This difference in funding rate, as well as the underwriting
discount and the hedging related charge described below, will reduce the economic terms of the notes to you and the
initial estimated value of the notes on the pricing date. Due to these factors, the public offering price you pay to
purchase the notes will be greater than the initial estimated value of the notes.  
On the cover page of this term sheet, we have provided the initial estimated value range for the notes.  This initial
estimated value range was determined based on our and our affiliates’ pricing models, which take into consideration
our internal funding rate and the market prices for the hedging arrangements related to the notes.  The initial estimated
value of the notes calculated on the pricing date will be set forth in the final term sheet made available to investors in
the notes. For more information about the initial estimated value and the structuring of the notes, see �Structuring the
Notes� on page TS-15.
Terms of the Notes Redemption Amount Determination
Issuer: Bank of America Corporation

(�BAC�)
On the maturity date, you will receive a cash payment
per unit determined as follows:

Principal Amount: $10.00 per unit
Term: Approximately 14 months
Market Measure: An approximately equally

weighted basket of three defense
industry stocks comprised
of General Dynamics
Corporation (NYSE symbol:
"GD"), Lockheed Martin
Corporation (NYSE symbol:
"LMT"), and Raytheon
Company (NYSE symbol:
"RTN") (each,
an �Underlying Company�).

Starting Value: The Starting Value will be set to
100.00 on the pricing date.

Ending Value: The value of the Basket on the
calculation day. The calculation
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day is subject to postponement
in the event of Market
Disruption Events, as described
beginning on page PS-26 of
product supplement STOCK
ARN-1.

Participation Rate: 300%
Capped Value: [$11.20 to $11.60] per unit,

which represents a return of
[12% to 16%] over the principal
amount. The actual Capped
Value will be determined on the
pricing date.

Calculation Day: Approximately the fifth
scheduled trading day
immediately preceding the
maturity date. 

Price Multiplier: 1 for each Basket Stock, subject
to adjustment for certain
corporate events relating to the
Basket Stocks described
beginning on page PS-19 of
product supplement STOCK
ARN-1.

Fees and Charges: The underwriting discount of
$0.20 per unit listed on the cover
page and the hedging related
charge of $0.075 per unit
described in �Structuring the
Notes� on page TS-15.

Calculation Agent: Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith Incorporated (�MLPF&S�),
a subsidiary of BAC.

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-2
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
The terms and risks of the notes are contained in this term sheet and in the following: 

■   Product supplement STOCK ARN-1 dated March 9, 2016:http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/70858/000119312516498589/d26301d424b5.htm">https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/70858/000119312516498589/d26301d424b5.htm 

■   Series L MTN prospectus supplement dated January 20, 2016 and prospectus dated May 1, 2015:http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/70858/000119312516433708/d122981d424b3.htm">http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/70858/000119312516433708/d122981d424b3.htm 
These documents (together, the �Note Prospectus�) have been filed as part of a registration statement with the SEC,
which may, without cost, be accessed on the SEC website as indicated above or obtained from MLPF&S by calling
1-800-294-1322. Before you invest, you should read the Note Prospectus, including this term sheet, for information
about us and this offering.  Any prior or contemporaneous oral statements and any other written materials you may
have received are superseded by the Note Prospectus. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this term sheet have
the meanings set forth in product supplement STOCK ARN-1.  Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context
requires otherwise, all references in this document to �we,� �us,� �our,� or similar references are to BAC.
Investor Considerations
You may wish to consider an investment in the
notes if:

The notes may not be an appropriate investment
for you if:

■   
You anticipate that the value of the Basket will
increase moderately from the Starting Value to the
Ending Value.
■   
You are willing to risk a loss of principal and return
if the value of the Basket decreases from the Starting
Value to the Ending Value.
■   
You accept that the return on the notes will be
capped.
■   
You are willing to forgo the interest payments that
are paid on conventional interest bearing debt
securities.
■   
You are willing to forgo dividends or other benefits
of owning the Basket Stocks.
■   
You are willing to accept a limited or no market for
sales prior to maturity, and understand that the
market prices for the notes, if any, will be affected
by various factors, including our actual and
perceived creditworthiness, our internal funding rate
and fees and charges on the notes.
■   
You are willing to assume our credit risk, as issuer of
the notes, for all payments under the notes, including
the Redemption Amount.

■   
You believe that the value of the Basket will
decrease from the Starting Value to the Ending
Value or that it will not increase sufficiently over the
term of the notes to provide you with your desired
return.
■   
You seek principal repayment or preservation of
capital.
■   
You seek an uncapped return on your investment.
■   
You seek interest payments or other current income
on your investment.
■   
You want to receive dividends or other distributions
paid on the Basket Stocks.
■   
You seek an investment for which there will be a
liquid secondary market.
■   
You are unwilling or are unable to take market risk
on the notes or to take our credit risk as issuer of the
notes.

We urge you to consult your investment, legal, tax, accounting, and other advisors before you invest in the notes.

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-3
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
Hypothetical Payout Profile and Examples of Payments at Maturity
The below graph is based on hypothetical numbers and values.

Accelerated Return Notes® This graph reflects the returns on the notes, based on
the Participation Rate of 300% and a Capped Value
of $11.40 per unit (the midpoint of the Capped Value
range of [$11.20 to $11.60]). The green line reflects
the returns on the notes, while the dotted gray line
reflects the returns of a direct investment in the
Basket Stocks, excluding dividends.
This graph has been prepared for purposes of
illustration only.

The following table and examples are for purposes of illustration only.  They are based on hypothetical values and
show hypothetical returns on the notes. They illustrate the calculation of the Redemption Amount and total rate of
return based on the Starting Value of 100, the Participation Rate of 300%, a Capped Value of $11.40 per unit and a
range of hypothetical Ending Values. The actual amount you receive and the resulting total rate of return will
depend on the actual Ending Value, Capped Value, and whether you hold the notes to maturity. The following
examples do not take into account any tax consequences from investing in the notes.
For hypothetical historical values of the Basket, see �The Basket� section below. For recent actual prices of the Basket
Stocks, see �The Basket Stocks� section below. The Ending Value will not include any income generated by dividends
paid on the Basket Stocks, which you would otherwise be entitled to receive if you invested in those stocks directly. In
addition, all payments on the notes are subject to issuer credit risk.

Ending Value

Percentage Change
from the Starting Value
to the Ending Value

Redemption Amount
per Unit

Total Rate of Return on
the Notes

0.00 -100.00% $0.00 -100.00%
50.00 -50.00% $5.00 -50.00%
80.00 -20.00% $8.00 -20.00%
90.00 -10.00% $9.00 -10.00%
94.00 -6.00% $9.40 -6.00%
97.00 -3.00% $9.70 -3.00%

100.00(1) 0.00% $10.00 0.00%
102.00 2.00% $10.60 6.00%
104.00 4.00% $11.20 12.00%
105.00 5.00% $11.40(2) 14.00%
110.00 10.00% $11.40 14.00%
120.00 20.00% $11.40 14.00%
130.00 30.00% $11.40 14.00%
140.00 40.00% $11.40 14.00%
150.00 50.00% $11.40 14.00%
160.00 60.00% $11.40 14.00%

(1)   The Starting Value will be set to 100.00 on the pricing date.
(2)   The Redemption Amount per unit cannot exceed the hypothetical Capped Value.
Accelerated Return Notes® TS-4
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
Redemption Amount Calculation Examples
Example 1
The Ending Value is 80.00, or 80.00% of the Starting Value:
Starting Value:    100.00
Ending Value:       80.00

= $8.00 Redemption Amount per unit
Example 2
The Ending Value is 102.00, or 102.00% of the Starting Value:
Starting Value:         100.00
Ending Value:           102.00

= $10.60 Redemption Amount per unit
Example 3
The Ending Value is 130.00, or 130.00% of the Starting Value:
Starting Value:         100.00
Ending Value:           130.00

= $19.00, however, because the Redemption Amount for the notes cannot exceed
the Capped Value, the Redemption Amount will be $11.40 per unit

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-5
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
Risk Factors
There are important differences between the notes and a conventional debt security.  An investment in the notes
involves significant risks, including those listed below. You should carefully review the more detailed explanation of
risks relating to the notes in the �Risk Factors� sections beginning on page PS-6 of product
supplement STOCK ARN-1, page S-5 of the Series L MTN prospectus supplement, and page 9 of the prospectus
identified above. We also urge you to consult your investment, legal, tax, accounting, and other advisors before you
invest in the notes.

■   Depending on the performance of the Basket as measured shortly before the maturity date, your investment mayresult in a loss; there is no guaranteed return of principal.

■   Your return on the notes may be less than the yield you could earn by owning a conventional fixed or floating ratedebt security of comparable maturity.

■   
Payments on the notes are subject to our credit risk, and actual or perceived changes in our creditworthiness are
expected to affect the value of the notes. If we become insolvent or are unable to pay our obligations, you may lose
your entire investment.

■   Your investment return is limited to the return represented by the Capped Value and may be less than a comparableinvestment directly in the Basket Stocks.

■   

The initial estimated value of the notes is an estimate only, determined as of a particular point in time by reference
to our and our affiliates’ pricing models. These pricing models consider certain assumptions and variables, including
our credit spreads, our internal funding rate on the pricing date, mid-market terms on hedging transactions,
expectations on interest rates and volatility, price-sensitivity analysis, and the expected term of the notes.  These
pricing models rely in part on certain forecasts about future events, which may prove to be incorrect.

■   

The public offering price you pay for the notes will exceed the initial estimated value. If you attempt to sell the
notes prior to maturity, their market value may be lower than the price you paid for them and lower than the initial
estimated value.  This is due to, among other things, changes in the value of the Basket, our internal funding rate,
and the inclusion in the public offering price of the underwriting discount and the hedging related charge, all as
further described in �Structuring the Notes� on page TS-15. These factors, together with various credit, market and
economic factors over the term of the notes, are expected to reduce the price at which you may be able to sell the
notes in any secondary market and will affect the value of the notes in complex and unpredictable ways.

■   

The initial estimated value does not represent a minimum or maximum price at which we, MLPF&S or any of our
affiliates would be willing to purchase your notes in any secondary market (if any exists) at any time. The value of
your notes at any time after issuance will vary based on many factors that cannot be predicted with accuracy,
including the performance of the Basket, our creditworthiness and changes in market conditions.

■   
A trading market is not expected to develop for the notes. Neither we nor MLPF&S is obligated to make a
market for, or to repurchase, the notes. There is no assurance that any party will be willing to purchase your
notes at any price in any secondary market.

■   

Our business activities as a full service financial institution, including our commercial and investment banking
activities, our hedging and trading activities (including trades in shares of the Basket Stocks), and any hedging and
trading activities we engage in for our clients’ accounts, may affect the market value and return of the notes and may
create conflicts of interest with you. 

■   The Underlying Companies will have no obligations relating to the notes, and neither we nor MLPF&S will performany due diligence procedures with respect to any Underlying Company in connection with this offering.
■   Changes in the price of one of the Basket Stocks may be offset by changes in the prices of the other Basket Stocks.

■   You will have no rights of a holder of the Basket Stocks, and you will not be entitled to receive shares of the BasketStocks or dividends or other distributions by the Underlying Companies. 

■   While we or our affiliates may from time to time own securities of the Underlying Companies, we do not control
any Underlying Company, and have not verified any disclosures made by any Underlying Company. 

■   The payment on the notes will not be adjusted for all corporate events that could affect a Basket Stock.  See
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�Description of ARNs—Anti-Dilution Adjustments� beginning on page PS-19 of product supplement STOCK ARN-1.

■   There may be potential conflicts of interest involving the calculation agent, which is an affiliate of ours.  We have
the right to appoint and remove the calculation agent.

■   
The U.S. federal income tax consequences of the notes are uncertain, and may be adverse to a holder of the notes.
 See �Summary Tax Consequences� below and �U.S. Federal Income Tax Summary� beginning on page PS-29 of
product supplement STOCK ARN-1.

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-6
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
Additional Risk Factors
The Basket Stocks are concentrated in one industry.  All of the Basket Stocks are issued by companies in
the defense industry.  Although an investment in the notes will not give holders any ownership or other direct interests
in the Basket Stocks, the return on an investment in the notes will be subject to certain risks associated with a direct
equity investment in companies in the defense industry, including those discussed below.  Accordingly, by investing
in the notes, you will not benefit from the diversification which could result from an investment linked to companies
that operate in multiple industries. In addition, because the Basket Stocks are concentrated in one industry, their prices
may increase or decrease at similar times and by similar magnitudes, and they may perform similarly over the term of
the notes. You will be subject to risks relating to the relationship among the Basket Stocks.
Adverse conditions in the defense industry may reduce your return on the notes.  All of the Basket Stocks are
issued by companies whose primary lines of business are directly associated with the defense industry. The
profitability of these companies is largely dependent on, among other things, U.S. government contracts,
military demand, government regulation, material costs and availability, continued innovation and the success of
various research endeavors, funding, talent attraction and retention, and industry competition. In addition, adverse
economic, business, market, environmental, labor or tax developments affecting the U.S., the areas of the world in
which these companies operate and/or the defense industry could affect the prices of the Basket Stock. Any of these
factors may have an adverse effect on the value of the notes.

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-7
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
The Basket
The Basket is designed to allow investors to participate in the percentage changes of the Basket from the Starting
Value to the Ending Value. The Basket Stocks are described in the section �The Basket Stocks� below.  Each
Basket Stock will be assigned an initial weight on the pricing date, as set forth in the table below. 
For more information on the calculation of the value of the Basket, please see the section entitled �Description of
ARNs—Basket Market Measures" beginning on page PS-25 of product supplement STOCK ARN-1.
If August 19, 2016 were the pricing date, for each Basket Stock, the Initial Component Weight, the Closing Market
Price, the hypothetical Component Ratio and the initial contribution to the Basket value would be as follows:

Basket
Component Bloomberg Symbol

Initial
Component
Weight Closing Market Price(1)(2)

Hypothetical
 Component
Ratio(1)(3)

Initial Basket
Value

Contribution
General Dynamics

Corporation GD 33.33% 152.38 0.21872949 33.33

Lockheed Martin
Corporation LMT 33.34% 254.12 0.13119786 33.34

Raytheon
Company RTN 33.33% 142.50 0.23389474 33.33

Starting Value 100.00

(1)   
The actual Closing Market Price of each Basket Stock and the resulting actual Component Ratios will be
determined on the pricing date and will be set forth in the final term sheet that will be made available in
connection with sales of the notes.

(2)   These were the Closing Market Prices of the Basket Stocks on August 19, 2016.

(3)   
Each hypothetical Component Ratio equals the Initial Component Weight of the relevant Basket Stock (as a
percentage) multiplied by 100, and then divided by the Closing Market Price of that Basket Stock on August 19,
2016 and rounded to eight decimal places.

The calculation agent will calculate the Ending Value of the Basket by summing the products of the Closing Market
Price for each Basket Stock (multiplied by its Price Multiplier) on the calculation day and the Component Ratio
applicable to that Basket Stock. The Price Multiplier for each Basket Stock will initially be 1, and is subject to
adjustment as described in the product supplement. If a Market Disruption Event occurs as to any Basket Stock on the
scheduled calculation day, the Closing Market Price of that Basket Stock will be determined as more fully
described in �Description of ARNs—Basket Market Measures—Ending Value of the Basket" beginning on page PS-26 of
product supplement STOCK ARN-1.

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-8
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
While actual historical information on the Basket will not exist before the pricing date, the following graph sets
forth the hypothetical historical daily performance of the Basket from January 2008 through August 2016.  The
graph is based upon actual daily historical prices of the Basket Stocks, hypothetical Component Ratios based
on the closing prices of the Basket Stocks as of December 31, 2007, and a Basket value of 100.00 as of that date.
This hypothetical historical data on the Basket is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the
Basket or what the value of the notes may be. Any hypothetical historical upward or downward trend in the
value of the Basket during any period set forth below is not an indication that the value of the Basket is more or
less likely to increase or decrease at any time over the term of the notes.
Hypothetical Historical Performance of the Basket

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-9
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
The Basket Stocks
We have derived the following information from publicly available documents. We have not independently verified
the accuracy or completeness of the following information. 
Because each Basket Stock is registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Underlying Companies are
required to file periodically certain financial and other information specified by the SEC. Information provided to or
filed with the SEC by the Underlying Companies can be located at the Public Reference Section of the SEC, 100 F
Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549 or through the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov by reference
to the applicable CIK number set forth below.
This term sheet relates only to the notes and does not relate to any securities of the Underlying Companies. Neither we
nor any of our affiliates have participated or will participate in the preparation of the Underlying Companies’ publicly
available documents. Neither we nor any of our affiliates have made any due diligence inquiry with respect to the
Underlying Companies in connection with the offering of the notes. Neither we nor any of our affiliates make any
representation that the publicly available documents or any other publicly available information regarding the
Underlying Companies are accurate or complete. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that all events occurring
prior to the date of this term sheet, including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of these publicly
available documents that would affect the trading price of the Basket Stocks, have been or will be publicly disclosed.
Subsequent disclosure of any events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events
concerning an Underlying Company could affect the price of its Basket Stock and therefore could affect your return
on the notes.  The selection of the Basket Stocks is not a recommendation to buy or sell shares of the Basket Stocks.
The tables set forth below show the quarterly high and low Closing Market Prices of the shares of the
Basket Stocks on their primary exchange from the first quarter of 2008 through August 19, 2016.  We obtained this
historical data from Bloomberg L.P.  We have not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of the
information obtained from Bloomberg L.P. These historical trading prices may have been adjusted to reflect certain
corporate actions such as stock splits and reverse stock splits.

Accelerated Return Notes® TS-10
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Accelerated Return Notes® 
Linked to a Basket of Three Defense Industry Stocks, due November  , 2017
General Dynamics Corporation
General Dynamics Corporation is a defense company. The company offers products and services in business aviation;
combat vehicles, weapons systems and munitions; shipbuilding design and construction; and information systems,
technologies and services. This Basket Stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol �GD�. The
company’s CIK number is 0000040533.

High ($) Low ($)
2008
First Quarter 88.93 78.85
Second Quarter 94.60 82.90
Third Quarter 94.25 71.40
Fourth Quarter 72.00 48.54
2009
First Quarter 61.23 36.31
Second Quarter 60.46 42.19
Third Quarter 64.61 51.54
Fourth Quarter 70.66 62.55
2010
First Quarter 78.48 66.35
Second Quarter 78.67 58.56
Third Quarter 64.32 55.87
Fourth Quarter 71.10 61.75
2011
First Quarter 78.11 69.97
Second Quarter 77.42 69.37
Third Quarter 75.81 55.87
Fourth Quarter 66.92 55.67
2012
First Quarter 73.91 67.40
Second Quarter 74.09 61.96
Third Quarter 67.20 61.99
Fourth Quarter 70.40 62.13
2013
First Quarter 71.86 64.57
Second Quarter 79.12 65.99
Third Quarter 89.65 78.07
Fourth Quarter 95.55 84.28
2014
First Quarter 112.66 94.46
Second Quarter 120.89 104.99
Third Quarter 129.45 114.39
Fourth Quarter 145.36 117.85
2015
First Quarter 142.24 132.19
Second Quarter 145.99 131.27
Third Quarter 153.28 135.11
Fourth Quarter 150.78 136.71
2016
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First Quarter 138.24 124.18
Second Quarter 145.71 130.84
Third Quarter (through August 19, 2016) 153.40 138.41
31
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012,
the Company had approximately $2,108,000 and $17,000, respectively, of research and development expenses
capitalized for federal income tax purposes, with amortization commencing upon the Company receiving an economic
benefit from the related research. For the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012, $4,000 of
organization costs were capitalized and will be amortized for federal income tax purposes over 15 years. Accordingly,
as of December 31, 2013, the Company had $2,263,391 gross federal and state net operating loss carryovers (“NOLs”).
For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012,
the deferred tax assets in connection with the net operating loss carryover, the research and development costs and the
organizational costs were fully reserved, and the Company’s effective tax rate was 0%.

As a result of the IPO, the availability of NOLs and the corresponding valuation allowance were both significantly
reduced due to the ownership change limitations provided by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and
similar state provisions.

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the future generation of taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income,
and taxing strategies in making this assessment. Based on this assessment, management has established a full
valuation allowance against all of the net deferred tax assets for each period, since it is more likely than not that all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Tax benefits are recognized only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by
tax authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent
likely to be realized upon settlement. A liability for “unrecognized tax benefits” is recorded for any tax benefits claimed
in the Company’s tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards. As of December 31, 2013
and September 30, 2014, no liability for unrecognized tax benefits was required to be reported. The guidance also
discusses the classification of related interest and penalties on income taxes. The Company’s policy is to record interest
and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense. No interest or penalties were recorded
for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 or for
the nine months ended September 30, 2014.

Convertible Instruments. The Company accounts for hybrid contracts that feature conversion options in accordance
with ASC 815 “Derivatives and Hedging Activities,” (“ASC 815”) and ASC 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity”
(“ASC 480”), which require companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account for them
as free standing derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The criteria includes circumstances in
which (i) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are not clearly and closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, (ii) the hybrid instrument that embodies both the
embedded derivative instrument and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable
generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (iii) a
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separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a derivative
instrument. The Company accounts for convertible instruments that have been determined to be free standing
derivative financial instruments (when the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should be
bifurcated from their host instruments) in accordance with ASC 815. Under ASC 815, a portion of the proceeds
received upon the issuance of the hybrid contract is allocated to the fair value of the derivative. The derivative was
subsequently marked to market at each reporting date based on current fair value, with the changes in fair value
reported in results of operations.

Conversion options that contain variable settlement features such as provisions to adjust the conversion price upon
subsequent issuances of equity or equity linked securities at exercise prices more favorable than that featured in the
hybrid contract generally result in their bifurcation from the host instrument.
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The Company accounted for convertible debt instruments, when the Company has determined that the embedded
conversion options should not be bifurcated from their host instruments, in accordance with ASC 470-20 “Debt with
Conversion and Other Options”. The Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the intrinsic
value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded
in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized under the effective interest method over the term
of the related debt.

On April 2, 2014, all convertible debt instruments and the related derivative liabilities were extinguished and
converted into 1,930,128 shares of common stock.

Common Stock Purchase Warrants and Other Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company classifies as equity
any contracts that (i) require physical settlement or net-share settlement or (ii) provides a choice of net-cash settlement
or settlement in the Company’s own shares (physical settlement or net-share settlement) providing that such contracts
are indexed to the Company's own stock as defined in ASC 815-40 “Contracts in Entity's Own Equity” (“ASC 815-40”).
The Company classifies as assets or liabilities any contracts that (i) require net-cash settlement (including a
requirement to net cash settle the contract if an event occurs and if that event is outside the Company’s control) or (ii)
gives the counterparty a choice of net-cash settlement or settlement in shares (physical settlement or net-share
settlement). The Company assesses classification of common stock purchase warrants and other free standing
derivatives at each reporting date to determine whether a change in classification between assets and liabilities or
equity is required.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years ended December 31, 2013, the Period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and for
the Period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013

Revenues. To date we have not generated any revenues.

Operating Expenses and Loss from Operations. Operating expenses are made up of derivative issuance, research,
development and general and administrative and marketing expenses. Loss from operations for the year ended
December 31, 2013, the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period October
30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013 were $4,435,470, $21,287 and. $4,456,757, respectively. General
and administrative expenses include costs for general and corporate functions, including facility fees, travel,
telecommunications, insurance, professional fees, consulting fees and other overhead.
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Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities. Change in fair value of derivative liabilities for the year ended
December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period
October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013 was $177,000, $0 and $177,000, respectively.

Interest Expense. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception)
through December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013 was
$908,611, $0 and $908,611, respectively, and included amortization of debt discount for the year ended December 31,
2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2013 of $705,289, $0 and $705,289, respectively.

Net Loss. Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through
December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013 was $5,521,081,
$21,287 and $5,542,368, respectively.

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Expenses and Loss from Operations. Loss from operations for the three months ended September 30, 2014
was $5,830,438 as compared to $797,472 for the three months ended September 30, 2013. The increase in loss from
operations resulted primarily from ASIC development, other research and development and marketing expenditures,
employee and consultant compensation, stock-based compensation, as well as the legal and accounting costs incurred
in connection with compliance with our SEC reporting obligations.
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Derivative instrument issuance expense was $0 and $9,040 for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Research and development expense was $3,699,057 and $583,524 and included stock-based
compensation of $329,138 and $0, patent application costs of approximately $133,836 and $88,884 and ASIC
development costs of approximately $896,750 and $383,670 for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. General and administrative expense was $1,322,048 and $172,894 and included stock-based
compensation of $165,228 and $0 for the three months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Marketing
expense was $809,333 and $32,014 and included stock-based compensation of $252,534 and $0 for the three months
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities. Change in fair value of derivative liabilities for the three months ended
September 30, 2014 was $0 as compared to a loss of $89,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2013.

Interest Income (Expense), Net. Interest income for the three months ended September 30, 2014 was $5,258 as
compared to interest expense of $286,891 for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and included amortization
of debt discount of $0 and $206,370, respectively. The change in interest income (expense), net, resulted primarily
from the conversion and extinguishment of the convertible notes in April 2014.

Net Loss. As a result of the above, net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2014 was $5,847,998 as
compared to $1,173,363 for the three months ended September 30, 2013.

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Expenses and Loss from Operations. Loss from operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2014
was $11,345,994 as compared to $2,747,929 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The increase in loss from
operations resulted primarily from ASIC development, patent application, other research and development and
marketing expenditures, employee and consultant compensation, stock-based compensation, as well as the legal and
accounting costs incurred in connection with compliance with our SEC reporting obligations.

Derivative instrument issuance expense was $0 and $887,062 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Research and development expense was $6,184,762 and $1,019,950 and included stock-based
compensation of $568,390 and $0, patent application costs of approximately $586,000 and $329,000 and ASIC
development costs of approximately $1,712,000 and $460,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. General and administrative expense was $3,124,439 and $808,903 and included stock-based
compensation of $657,738 and $0 for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Marketing
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expense was $2,036,793 and $32,014 and included stock-based compensation of $433,277 and $0 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities. Change in fair value of derivative liabilities for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 was $26,265,177 as compared to $111,500 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The
increase in change in fair value of derivative liabilities resulted primarily from an increase in the Company’s stock
price from January 1, 2014 through April 2, 2014.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $1,029,479 as compared to
$383,380 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and included amortization of debt discount of $964,851 and
$262,506, respectively. The increase in interest expense, net, resulted primarily from the convertible notes being
outstanding for a longer period during the nine months ended September 30, 2014 as opposed to the nine months
ended September 30, 2013. 

Gain on Debt Extinguishment. Gain on debt extinguishment for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was
$2,084,368 as compared to $0 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. The gain on debt extinguishment
resulted from the conversion of the convertible notes and the related extinguishment of the notes, accrued interest
payable and the derivative liability.

Net Loss.  As a result of the above, net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 was $36,579,100 as
compared to $3,242,809 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have not generated revenues since inception and have a net loss of $5,847,998 and $1,173,363 for the three
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and net losses of $36,579,100 and $3,242,809 for the nine
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Since inception, we have met our liquidity requirements
principally through the private placement of convertible notes, our recently completed IPO, the sale of our common
stock to a strategic investor, and the issuance of our common stock to our landlord to reduce our monthly base rent
obligation and pay for certain tenant improvements.

As of September 30, 2014, we had cash on hand of $18,420,480. In April 2014 we completed our IPO of 4,600,000
shares of common stock through which we raised net proceeds of approximately $24.8 million. In connection with the
completion of the IPO, our outstanding convertible notes and interest accrued thereon were converted into 1,833,336
and 96,792 shares, respectively, of common stock, thus extinguishing the debt associated with the notes. On April 4,
2014, we issued 210,527 shares of common stock to a strategic investor upon the receipt of net proceeds of $900,000
($300,000 received on March 27, 2014, $700,000 received on April 4, 2014, net of commissions paid of $100,000).

We believe our current cash on hand will be sufficient to fund our operations into the fourth quarter of 2015.
However, we expect to require additional financing to fully implement our business plan, the ultimate goal of which is
to license our technology to device manufacturers, wireless service providers and other commercial partners to make
wire-free charging an affordable, ubiquitous and convenient service for end users. Potential financing sources could
include follow-on equity offerings, debt financing, co-development agreements or other alternatives. Depending upon
market conditions, we may choose to pursue additional financing to, among other reasons, accelerate our product
development efforts, regulatory activities and business development and support functions with a view to capitalizing
on the market opportunity we see for our wire-free charging technology.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, cash flows used in operating activities were $8,490,970,
consisting of a net loss of $36,579,100 less non-cash expenses aggregating $27,024,780 (representing principally the
amortization of debt discount of $964,851, stock based compensation of $1,659,404 and the change in fair value of
derivative liabilities of $26,265,177 offset by the gain on the conversion of notes of $2,084,368). During the nine
months ended September 30, 2013, cash flows used in operating activities were $1,825,969, consisting of a net loss of
$3,242,809, offset by non-cash expenses of $1,098,886 and net changes in operating assets and liabilities of $317,954.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, cash flows used in investing activities were $815,500
and $21,226, respectively. The increase for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 consisted principally of the
purchase of laboratory and computer equipment and software, as well as furniture and fixtures for the new office in
San Jose, CA.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2014, cash flows provided by financing activities were $25,773,170 and
consisted principally of the net proceeds from our IPO of $24,872,170, and net proceeds of $900,000 from the sale of
our common stock. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, cash flows provided by financing activities
were $5,700,690 and consisted principally of $200,681 in proceeds from the sale of the Company’s common stock and
$5,500,009 in proceeds from the sale of convertible debt.

Research and development of new technologies is, by its nature, unpredictable. Although we will undertake
development efforts with commercially reasonable diligence, there can be no assurance that our available resources
including the proceeds from this offering will be sufficient to enable us to develop our technology to the extent needed
to create future revenues to sustain our operations.

We cannot assure that our technology will be adopted, that we will ever earn revenues sufficient to support our
operations, or that we will ever be profitable. Furthermore, since we have no committed source of financing, we
cannot assure you that we will be able to raise capital as and when we need it to continue our operations.
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Off Balance Sheet Transactions

We do not have any off-balance sheet transactions.
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following table sets forth the names and ages of all of our directors and executive officers. Our officers are
appointed by, and serve at the pleasure of, the board of directors.

Name AgePosition
Stephen R. Rizzone 65 President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
Michael Leabman 41 Chief Technology Officer and Director
George B. Holmes 51 Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing
Cesar Johnston 50 Senior Vice President of Engineering
Howard R. Yeaton 59 Interim Chief Financial Officer
Nicolaos G. Alexopoulos 72 Director
John R. Gaulding 69 Director
Robert J. Griffin 48 Director
Rex S. Jackson 54 Director

Biographical information with respect to our executive officers and directors is provided below. There are no family
relationships between any of our executive officers or directors.

Stephen R. Rizzone – President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

Mr. Stephen R. Rizzone joined the Company as President, Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the board of
directors in October 2013. Mr. Rizzone has more than 35 years of executive management, marketing, sales and
entrepreneurial experience in the data communications hardware, networking hardware and software, silicon and
optical components markets. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Rizzone served as Chief Executive Officer and
chairman of the board of directors of Active Storage, Inc. from June 2011 until December 2012 and as the Chief
Executive Officer and chairman of the board of directors of Communicado, Inc. from April 2006 to September 2009.
Mr. Rizzone previously served as member of the board of directors of Katzkin Leather from June 2011 to November
2013 and the Los Angeles Regional Technology Alliance (LARTA) from February 2009 to November 2011. Mr.
Rizzone holds a BA in Public Administration from California State University at Fullerton. Mr. Rizzone’s extensive
industry, executive and board experience position him well to serve as our Chief Executive Officer and a member of
our board of directors.

Michael Leabman – Chief Technology Officer, Director and Founder
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Mr. Leabman founded the Company in October 2012 and became the Company’s Chief Technology Officer in October
2013. Mr. Leabman has been a member of the Company’s board of directors since its founding and served as the
Company’s President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary until October 2013. From September 2010 to
September 2013, Mr. Leabman served as President of TruePath Wire-free, a service provider and equipment provider
in the broadband communications industry. Mr. Leabman has served on the board of directors of TruePath Holdings
since 2010 and continues to serve on the board today. From 2008 to 2010, Mr. Leabman served as Chief Technology
Officer for DataRunway Inc., a wire-free communication company providing broadband internet to airlines. Mr.
Leabman received both his Bachelor of Science degree and Master of Engineering degree in electrical engineering
from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. Mr. Leabman’s extensive knowledge the Company, its technology and
the consumer and commercial electronics industry position him well for service on our board of directors.

George B. Holmes – Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing

Mr. Holmes serves as the Company’s as Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing, joining the Company in
October 2013. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Holmes served as Vice President of Sales at SolarBridge
Technologies from February 2011 until June 2013 where he was responsible for all sales, business development,
applications and sales operations activities for the company. Mr. Holmes served as Senior Vice President Sales and
Marketing from January 2008 until December 2010 for PureEnergy Solutions, a developer and manufacturer of
wire-free power products. Since 2007, Mr. Holmes has served as been a partner at aAgave Solutions, LLC, a provider
of sales at marketing consulting services. He has served in strategic executive management and sales roles for
companies including PowerCast, X1 Technologies, Agere Systems (formerly Lucent MicroElectronics), Ortel Corp.
(acquired by Lucent), Level One Communications and Symmetricom. Mr. Holmes holds a B.A. in business from the
University of Puget Sound, a diploma in international business from Nyenrode University and has completed the AEA
Executive Institute, Management of Technology Companies program at Stanford University.
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Cesar Johnston – Senior Vice President of Engineering

Cesar Johnston joined the Company as Senior Vice President of Engineering in July 2014. Prior to joining the
company, Mr. Johnston was Vice President of Engineering for Wireless Connectivity at Marvell Semiconductor from
March 2006 until September 2013. At Marvell, he was responsible for development of Wi-Fi, Bluetooth, FM and NFC
silicon products. Mr. Johnston was the Senior Director Engineering for Wi-Fi VLSI and Hardware development at
Broadcom from January 2004 until March 2006. Mr. Johnston is a recognized pioneer in the development of wireless
technologies, and he has been responsible for the introduction of multiple first-of generations of Single-Input and
Single-Output and Multiple-Input and Multiple-Output wireless products. Mr. Johnston received both a Bachelor of
Science and Master of Science in Electrical Engineering from NYU Polytechnic School of Engineering and holds
several patents.

Howard R. Yeaton – Interim Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Yeaton was appointed Interim Chief Financial Officer on July 14, 2014. Since 2003, Mr. Yeaton has been and
continues as the Managing Principal of Financial Consulting Strategies LLC, a firm serving principally early stage
public companies with financial reporting support and other related strategic services. Prior to founding Financial
Consulting Strategies LLC, Mr. Yeaton served in various financial leadership positions for Konica and Teco Energy.
Mr. Yeaton began his career with Deloitte, an international accounting and auditing firm. Mr. Yeaton currently serves
as interim Chief Financial Officer for Kitara Media Corp,, a digital media and technology company (OTCBB: KITM),
and as a director and chairman of the audit committee for Stewardship Financial Corporation, a community bank. Mr.
Yeaton has a BS in accounting from Florida State University and a Masters in Business Administration from the
University of Connecticut.

Nicolaos G. Alexopoulos – Director

Dr. Nicolaos (Nick) G. Alexopoulos joined the Company’s board of directors in February 2014. Dr. Alexopoulos is
Vice President for RF Technologies, Antennas and University Relations at Broadcom Corporation, where he has been
employed since August 2008. Prior to joining Broadcom, Dr. Alexopoulos served as the Dean of the Henry Samueli
School of Engineering at UC Irvine from 1997 until 2008 and Chair of the Electrical Engineering Department at
UCLA from 1987 until 1992. Dr. Alexopoulos holds a BSEE, MSEE and PhD Degrees in Electrical Engineering from
the University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Michigan. He has an Honorary Doctorate from the National Technical
University of Athens and has published extensively on the topics of antennas and microwave circuits, artificial
materials and other technologies. In addition, he has served over the years as a consultant to various high tech
corporations, founded Kimalink Inc. (bought by Broadcom Corporation in 2001) and holds many US patents. In
addition, he is a Fellow of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, has been elected to the United States
National Academy of Engineering and serves on university advisory boards. Dr. Alexopoulos’ unique and extensive
scientific/technical and business expertise position him well to serve on our board of directors.
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John R. Gaulding – Director

Mr. John R. Gaulding joined the Company’s board of directors in March 2014. Since July 1996, Mr. Gaulding has
been a private investor and business consultant in the fields of strategy and organization. Mr. Gaulding is a
Co-Founder and Director Emeritus of Sage Partners, an advisory firm providing counsel on strategy and corporate
governance issues. He is also Chairman Emeritus of Dominican University of California where he served for 7 years
as Chairman and 16 years as a Trustee. From 1996-1999 and again from 2001 to the present, Mr. Gaulding has been
an independent director of Monster, Worldwide (NYSE:MWW), where he serves on the Audit Committee and chairs
the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. From 2002-2012, he served as a Director for Yellow Media,
Inc. (TSE:Y) where he also chaired the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee and the Compensation
Committee. Mr. Gaulding’s extensive corporate board experience includes ANTs Software, Inc. where he was lead
director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, and ORTEL (NASDAQ:ORTL), a high–technology manufacturer of
electro-optical devices used in the telecommunications industry. In addition, he served as the executive Chairman and
CEO of National Insurance Group, Inc. (NASDAQ:NAIG). Mr. Gaulding has also served as non-executive Chairman
of Novo Media, Inc., one of the first digital agencies, sold to BCOM3 and in the same capacity with GetMeIn, a
secondary ticketing agency headquartered in London and sold to Ticketmaster. Finally, he was a founding director of
the popular in-airport wine lounge, Vino Volo. Mr. Gaulding ‘s industry experience includes 15 years as a corporate
officer, serving as Vice-President for Corporate Strategy and Development for Pacific Telesis Group, President and
CEO for Pacific Bell Yellow Pages, and President and CEO for ADP Claims Solutions Group. Mr. Gaulding holds a
BS in Engineering from UCLA, an MBA with honors from the University of Southern California, and an honorary
Doctor of Laws from Dominican University of California. Mr. Gaulding’s extensive executive and managerial
experience position him well to serve as a member of our Board of Directors.

Robert J. Griffin - Director

Mr. Robert J. Griffin joined the Company’s board of directors in February 2014. Mr. Griffin is the Founder and Chief
Executive Officer of Griffin International Companies, a Minneapolis-based retail sales and marketing firm. Since
founding Griffin International Companies in 1997, Mr. Griffin has led the expansion of the company’s business across
three continents and secured the license of brands and technologies from a number of large, well known companies.
Prior to founding Griffin International Companies, Mr. Griffin spent 6 years at Best Buy Co. in various management
roles. Mr. Griffin holds a BA in Economics from Gustavus Adolphus College. Mr. Griffin’s extensive executive
leadership experience and his in-depth knowledge of the retail industry and technology licensing make him well
qualified to serve on our board of directors.

Rex S. Jackson – Director

Mr. Rex S. Jackson joined the Company’s board of directors in March 2014. Mr. Jackson has served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of JDS Uniphase Corporation (“JDSU”) (NASDAQ:JDSU), a provider of network
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and service enablement solutions and optical products for telecommunications service providers, cable operators, and
network equipment manufacturers, since January 2013. Mr. Jackson joined JDSU in January 2011 as senior vice
president, Business Services, with responsibility for several corporate functions, including Information Technology,
where he drove significant operational improvements. Prior to JDSU, Mr. Jackson served as executive vice president
and chief financial officer at Symyx Technologies from 2007 to 2010, where he had responsibility for finance, legal,
IT and other corporate functions and where he led the company’s acquisition of MDL Information Systems and
subsequent merger with Accelrys. Mr. Jackson also previously served as acting CFO at Synopsys and held executive
positions with Avago, AdForce and Read-Rite. Mr. Jackson holds a B.A. degree from Duke University and earned his
J.D. from Stanford University Law School. Mr. Jackson’s accounting and financial expertise, general business acumen
and significant executive leadership experience position him well to make valuable contributions to our board of
directors.
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Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined that Dr. Alexopoulos, Mr. Gaulding, Mr. Griffin and Mr. Jackson are
“independent directors” as such term is defined by NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 5605(a)(2). We have established an
Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Mr.
Gaulding, Mr. Griffin and Mr. Jackson serve as members of the Audit Committee. Dr. Alexopoulos and Mr. Gaulding
serve as members of the Compensation Committee. Mr. Gaulding and Mr. Jackson serve as members of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Our board of directors has determined that both Mr. Gaulding and
Mr. Jackson are audit committee financial experts, as defined under the applicable rules of the SEC, and that all
members of the Audit and Compensation Committees are “independent” as required by applicable NASDAQ listing
standards. Each of the members of the Audit Committee meets the requirements for financial literacy under the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and The NASDAQ Stock Market.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Our compensation philosophy is to offer our executive officers compensation and benefits that are competitive and
meet our goals of attracting, retaining and motivating highly skilled management, which is necessary to achieve our
financial and strategic objectives and create long-term value for our stockholders. We believe the levels of
compensation we provide should be competitive, reasonable and appropriate for our business needs and
circumstances. The principal elements of our executive compensation program have to date included base salary, and
long-term equity compensation in the form of stock options. We believe successful long-term Company performance
is more critical to enhancing stockholder value than short-term results. For this reason and to conserve cash and better
align the interests of management and our stockholders, we emphasize long-term performance-based equity
compensation over base annual salaries.

The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation earned by the individual that served as our
Principal Executive Officer during 2013 and our two most highly compensated executive officers other than the
individual who served as our Principal Executive Officer during 2013 (collectively, the “named executive officers”):

2013 Summary Compensation Table

Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($) Option
Awards ($)(1) Total ($)

Stephen R. Rizzone 2013 37,500 - 258,373 295,873
Chief Executive Officer and 2012 - - - -
President

Michael Leabman 2013 86,500 100,000 - 186,500
Chief Technology Officer 2012 - - - -

Thomas Iwanski 2013 37,500 - - 37,500
Former Chief Financial Officer 2012 - - - -

(1)

The amounts shown in this column indicate the grant date fair value of option awards granted in the subject year
computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. For additional information regarding the assumptions made
in calculating these amounts, see notes 3 and 9 to our audited financial statements included elsewhere in this
prospectus.

In December 2013, Mr. Rizzone was granted an option award covering 275,689 shares of common stock under our
2013 Equity Incentive Plan that vests over four years in 48 equal monthly installments beginning October 1, 2013.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2013 Fiscal Year-End

The following table provides information regarding equity awards held by the named executive officers as of
December 31, 2013.

Name

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Unexercisable

Option
Exercise
Price ($)

Option
Expiration
Date

Stephen R. Rizzone 17,230 258,459 (1) $ 1.68 12/12/23

(1)Reflects the unvested portion of an option grant which vests in equal monthly installments through October 2017 .

Employment Agreements and Change of Control Arrangements

The following is a summary of the employment arrangements with the named executive officers as currently in effect.

Stephen Rizzone. We entered into an employment agreement with Stephen Rizzone, our President, Chief Executive
Officer and chairman of our board of directors, effective October 1, 2013. The employment agreement has no specific
term and constitutes at-will employment. Mr. Rizzone’s current annual base salary is $300,000, and he is eligible for
up to five annual cash bonuses of up to $30,000 each (one each with respect to our fiscal quarters and one with respect
to our fiscal year) based upon achievement of performance-based objectives established by our board of directors of
which two have been paid. Pursuant to Mr. Rizzone’s employment agreement, he was granted a ten year option to
purchase 275,689 shares of common stock on December 12, 2013 under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan that vests
over four years in 48 equal monthly installments beginning October 1, 2013, the start of the requisite service period.
Mr. Rizzone’s employment agreement provided that upon the consummation of our initial public offering he received
an additional option award so that together with Mr. Rizzone’s December 2013 option award, the two option awards
combined represent six percent (6%) of the Company’s outstanding shares on a fully-diluted basis. The second option
award to purchase 496,546 shares of common stock was granted on March 26, 2014 and vests over the same vesting
schedule as Mr. Rizzone’s December 2013 option award.

If Mr. Rizzone’s employment is terminated due to his death or disability, by the Company without cause or if Mr.
Rizzone resigns for good reason, Mr. Rizzone will be entitled to receive (i) one year of his base salary at the rate then
in effect, (ii) five performance bonuses (each equal to the average of the performance bonus paid with respect to the

Edgar Filing: BANK OF AMERICA CORP /DE/ - Form 424B2

34



two fiscal quarters, or the fiscal quarter-end and fiscal year-end, as applicable, immediately preceding Mr. Rizzone’s
termination or resignation) (iii) reimbursement of Mr. Rizzone’s cost of COBRA coverage for one year, and (iv)
twenty-five percent (25%) of the options to purchase shares of common stock subject to Mr. Rizzone’s option awards
described above will vest immediately and become exercisable, and, along with any previously vested and
unexercised options, may be exercised by Mr. Rizzone within one year following his termination or resignation.
However, if a Liquidation Event (as defined below) shall occur within one year of Mr. Rizzone’s termination without
cause or his resignation for good reason, all of Mr. Rizzone’s option awards described above will vest immediately and
become exercisable.

Mr. Rizzone’s employment agreement provides that if the Company experiences a Liquidation Event (as defined
below), Mr. Rizzone’s employment with the Company will be terminated and the Company will enter into a consulting
agreement with Mr. Rizzone that entitles him to the following during its term: (i) continued payment of Mr. Rizzone’s
base salary at the rate then in effect, (ii) continued payment of Mr. Rizzone’s performance bonuses described above,
and (iii) continued payment of benefits that are substantially similar to those of the Company’s other senior executive
officers, and (iv) continuation of the vesting period of the option awards described above. The term of the consulting
agreement between the Company and Mr. Rizzone shall expire on the later of two years from the date of the
Liquidation event or October 1, 2017. For purposes of Mr. Rizzone’s employment agreement, a Liquidation Event
means a merger, acquisition, consolidation or other transaction (other than an equity financing) following which our
stockholders prior to such transaction hold less than fifty percent (50%) of our outstanding voting securities of the
acquiring or surviving entity, or a sale, license or transfer of all or substantially all of our assets.
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If Mr. Rizzone resigns without good reason, he will be entitled to his base salary at the rate then in effect up to and
through the effective date of his resignation, along with any unreimbursed reasonable, out-of-pocket business
expenses incurred by Mr. Rizzone in the performance of his duties.

Mr. Rizzone is also eligible to receive benefits that are substantially similar to those of the Company’s other senior
executive officers. Mr. Rizzone is subject to certain restrictive covenants, including non-solicitation of employees,
consultants and customers and non-competition each for a period one year following termination of his employment
with the Company.

Michael Leabman . We entered into an employment agreement with Michael Leabman, our Chief Technology
Officer, effective October 1, 2013. The employment agreement has no specific term and constitutes at-will
employment. Mr. Leabman’s current annual base salary is $250,000, and he is eligible for an annual performance
based bonus award of up to twenty percent (20%) of his base salary based upon achievement of performance-based
objectives established by our Chief Executive Officer and board of directors. Pursuant to Mr. Leabman’s employment
agreement, in January 2014, he was granted a ten year option to purchase 57,644 shares of common stock under our
2013 Equity Incentive Plan that vested 3/48ths on the date of grant, and will vest 1/48th monthly over the following
45 months. Mr. Leabman’s employment agreement provided that upon the consummation of our initial public offering,
he received an additional option award so that together with Mr. Leabman’s December 2013 option award, the two
option awards combined plus any Company securities he currently owns represent three percent (3%) of the
Company’s outstanding shares on a fully-diluted basis. The second option award to purchase 251,474 shares of
common stock was granted on March 26, 2014 and vests over the same vesting schedule as Mr. Leabman’s initial
option award.

If Mr. Leabman’s employment is terminated due to his death or disability, by the Company without cause or if Mr.
Leabman resigns for good reason, Mr. Leabman will be entitled to receive (i) one year of his base salary at the rate
then in effect, (ii) a performance bonuses each equal to the total performance bonuses paid to Mr. Leabman in the
calendar year immediately preceding Mr. Leabman’s termination or resignation (iii) reimbursement of Mr. Leabman’s
cost of COBRA coverage for one year, and (iv) twenty-five percent (25%) of the options to purchase shares of
common stock subject to Mr. Leabman’s option awards described above will vest immediately and become
exercisable, and, along with any previously vested and unexercised options, may be exercised by Mr. Leabman within
one year following his termination or resignation. However, if a Liquidation Event (as defined below) shall occur
within one year of Mr. Leabman’s termination without cause or his resignation for good reason, all of Mr. Leabman’s
options to purchase shares of common stock pursuant to the option awards described above will vest immediately and
become exercisable.

In addition to those benefits described above, if Mr. Leabman’s employment is terminated by the Company without
cause or he resigns for Good Reason within 18 months of a Liquidation Event (as defined below), all of Mr.
Leabman’s options to purchase shares of common stock pursuant to the option awards described above will vest
immediately and become exercisable. For purposes of Mr. Leabman’s employment agreement, a Liquidation Event has
the same meaning as in Mr. Rizzone’s employment agreement. If Mr. Leabman resigns without good reason, he will be
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entitled to his base salary at the rate then in effect up to and through the effective date of his resignation, along with
any unreimbursed reasonable, out-of-pocket business expenses incurred by Mr. Leabman in the performance of his
duties.

Mr. Leabman is also eligible to receive benefits that are substantially similar to those of the Company’s other senior
executive officers. Mr. Leabman is subject to certain restrictive covenants, including non-solicitation of employees,
consultants and customers and non-competition each for a period one year following termination of his employment
with the Company.
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Director Compensation

Members of our board of directors did not receive compensation for their service as directors for the year ended
December 31, 2013. In August 2014 we adopted a non-employee director policy pursuant to which our non-employee
directors receive on an annual basis a $50,000 retainer paid in cash and an annual equity award with a value of
$50,000. The equity award consists of a restricted stock unit grant made on the first trading day following December
31 of each year covering a number of shares of common stock equal to $50,000 divided by the closing price of our
common stock on such date and that vests in full on the one year anniversary of grant. The lead independent director
and committee members receive additional annual cash compensation as follows:

Lead Independent Director: $25,000
Audit Committee Chair: $20,000
Audit Committee Member: $10,000
Compensation Committee Chair: $15,000
Compensation Committee Member: $5,000
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee Chair: $10,000
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee Member: $5,000

In February 2014, Dr. Alexopoulos and Mr. Griffin were each granted a stock option award for 2014 covering 25,979
shares of common stock. In March 2014, Mr. Gaulding and Mr. Jackson were each granted a stock option award for
2014 covering 19,013 and 15,768 shares of common stock, respectively.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a brief description of our capital stock. This summary does not purport to be complete in all respects.
This description is subject to and qualified entirely by the terms of our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), and our bylaws, copies of which have been filed with the SEC and are
also available upon request from us.

Authorized Capitalization

We have 60,000,000 shares of capital stock authorized under our Certificate of Incorporation, consisting of
50,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.00001 per share and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock
with a par value of $0.00001 per share. As of November 1, 2014, we had 9,490,435 shares of common stock
outstanding. Our authorized but unissued shares of common stock are available for issuance without further action by
our stockholders, unless such action is required by applicable law or the rules of any stock exchange or automated
quotation system on which our securities may be listed or traded.

Common Stock

Holders of our common stock are entitled to such dividends as may be declared by our board of directors out of funds
legally available for such purpose. The shares of common stock are neither redeemable nor convertible. Holders of
common stock have no preemptive or subscription rights to purchase any of our securities.

Each holder of our common stock is entitled to one vote for each such share outstanding in the holder’s name. No
holder of common stock is entitled to cumulate votes in voting for directors.

In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of our common stock are entitled to receive pro
rata our assets, which are legally available for distribution, after payments of all debts and other liabilities. All of the
outstanding shares of our common stock are fully paid and non-assessable. The shares of common stock offered by
this prospectus will also be fully paid and non-assessable.

Our shares of common stock are listed the NASDAQ Capital Market.
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Stock Options, RSUs and Warrants

As of November 1, 2014, we had reserved the following shares of common stock for issuance pursuant to stock
options, RSUs, warrants and equity plans:

·
1,599,277 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under stock option agreements issued pursuant to our
2013 Equity Incentive Plan and 2014 Non-Employee Equity Compensation Plan at a weighted average exercise price
of $4.90 per share;

·346,569 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under restricted stock units (“RSU”) agreements issuedpursuant to our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and 2014 Non-Employee Equity Compensation Plan;

·978,964 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under outstanding warrants and non-statutory stock options ata weighted average exercise price of $4.58 per share;

·120,000 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under RSU agreements issued as inducement awards; and

·640,171 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and 2014Non-Employee Equity Compensation Plan.
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Anti-Takeover Effects of Certain Provisions of Delaware Law and Our Charter Documents

The following is a summary of certain provisions of Delaware law, our Certificate of Incorporation and our bylaws.
This summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the corporate law of
Delaware and our Certificate of Incorporation and bylaws.

Effect of Delaware Anti-Takeover Statute. We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law,
an anti-takeover law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any business
combination (as defined below) with any interested stockholder (as defined below) for a period of three years
following the date that the stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless:

·prior to that date, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transactionthat resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

·

upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the
interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the
transaction commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares of voting stock outstanding (but
not the voting stock owned by the interested stockholder) those shares owned by persons who are directors and
officers and by excluding employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to determine
whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

·
on or subsequent to that date, the business combination is approved by the board of directors of the corporation and
authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at
least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 defines “business combination” to include the following:

· any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder;

·any sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition of 10% or more of the assets of the corporation involving the interestedstockholder;

·subject to certain exceptions, any transaction that results in the issuance or transfer by the corporation of any stock ofthe corporation to the interested stockholder;
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·
subject to limited exceptions, any transaction involving the corporation that has the effect of increasing the
proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the corporation beneficially owned by the interested
stockholder; or

· the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financialbenefits provided by or through the corporation.

In general, Section 203 defines an interested stockholder as any entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of
the outstanding voting stock of the corporation, or who beneficially owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock
of the corporation at any time within a three-year period immediately prior to the date of determining whether such
person is an interested stockholder, and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by any of these
entities or persons.
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Effect of California Corporation Long-Arm Statute. We are a Delaware corporation, governed by the Delaware
General Corporation Law; however, our headquarters, property and officers are located in California. Section 2115 of
the California Corporations Code (the “California Corporation Long-Arm Statute”) purports to impose on corporations
like the Company certain portions of California’s laws governing corporations formed under the laws of the State of
California. While disputes have arisen regarding the enforceability of the California Corporation Long-Arm Statute,
the statute purports to apply the California Corporations Code in the following areas of governance to corporations
that meet the test for applicability for the California Corporation Long-Arm Statute: Chapter 1 (general provisions and
definitions), to the extent applicable to the following provisions; Section 301 (annual election of directors); Section
303 (removal of directors without cause); Section 304 (removal of directors by court proceedings); Section 305,
subdivision (c) (filling of director vacancies where less than a majority in office elected by shareholders); Section 309
(directors’ standard of care); Section 316 (excluding paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) and paragraph (3) of subdivision
(f)) (liability of directors for unlawful distributions); Section 317 (indemnification of directors, officers, and others);
Sections 500 to 505, inclusive (limitations on corporate distributions in cash or property); Section 506 (liability of
shareholder who receives unlawful distribution); Section 600, subdivisions (b) and (c) (requirement for annual
shareholders’ meeting and remedy if same not timely held); Section 708, subdivisions (a), (b), and (c) (shareholder’s
right to cumulate votes at any election of directors); Section 710 (supermajority vote requirement); Section 1001,
subdivision (d) (limitations on sale of assets); Section 1101 (provisions following subdivision (e)) (limitations on
mergers); Section 1151 (first sentence only) (limitations on conversions); Section 1152 (requirements of conversions);
Chapter 12 (commencing with Section 1200) (reorganizations); Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 1300)
(dissenters’ rights); Sections 1500 and 1501 (records and reports); Section 1508 (action by Attorney General); Chapter
16 (commencing with Section 1600) (rights of inspection).

We believe it is likely that we meet the test for the application of the California Corporation Long-Arm Statute and do
not anticipate a specific time in the future when we would not meet such test. The California Corporation Long-Arm
Statute, if applicable, would purport to require a different outcome for certain important activities fundamental to the
governance of corporations, and you are encouraged to review the effect of the California Long-Arm Statute to
determine whether the differences from the Delaware General Corporation Law are important to you.

Our Charter Documents. Our charter documents include provisions that may have the effect of discouraging, delaying
or preventing a change in control or an unsolicited acquisition proposal that a stockholder might consider favorable,
including a proposal that might result in the payment of a premium over the market price for the shares held by our
stockholders. Certain of these provisions are summarized in the following paragraphs.

Effects of authorized but unissued common stock. One of the effects of the existence of authorized but unissued
common stock may be to enable our board of directors to make more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain
control of our Company by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise, and thereby to protect the
continuity of management. If, in the due exercise of its fiduciary obligations, the board of directors were to determine
that a takeover proposal was not in our best interest, such shares could be issued by the board of directors without
stockholder approval in one or more transactions that might prevent or render more difficult or costly the completion
of the takeover transaction by diluting the voting or other rights of the proposed acquirer or insurgent stockholder
group, by putting a substantial voting block in institutional or other hands that might undertake to support the position
of the incumbent board of directors, by effecting an acquisition that might complicate or preclude the takeover, or
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otherwise.

Cumulative Voting. Our Certificate of Incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of
directors, which would allow holders of less than a majority of the stock to elect some directors.

Vacancies. Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that all vacancies may be filled by the affirmative vote of a
majority of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum.

Special Meeting of Stockholders. A special meeting of stockholders may only be called by the President, the Chief
Executive Officer, or the board of directors at any time and for any purpose or purposes as shall be stated in the notice
of the meeting, or by request of the holders of record of at least 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock. This
provision could prevent stockholders from calling a special meeting because, unless certain significant stockholders
were to join with them, they might not obtain the percentage necessary to request the meeting. Therefore, stockholders
holding less than 10% of the issued and outstanding common stock, without the assistance of management, may be
unable to propose a vote on any transaction that would delay, defer or prevent a change of control, even if the
transaction were in the best interests of our stockholders.
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MARKET FOR OUR COMMON STOCK, DIVIDEND POLICY AND OTHER STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

We have never paid cash dividends on our securities and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our shares
of common stock in the foreseeable future. We intend to retain any future earnings for reinvestment in our business.
Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors, and will be
dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and such other factors as our board
of directors deems relevant.

Our shares of common stock are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “WATT.” The table below
provides, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the reported high and low sales prices for our common stock on the
NASDAQ Capital Market since March 28, 2014.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014 High Low

First Quarter (beginning March 28) $16.00 $7.76

Second Quarter $16.44 $10.30

Third Quarter $15.27 $9.51

Fourth Quarter (through November 11, 2014) $11.60 $8.68

As of November 1, 2014, we had 9,490,435 shares of common stock outstanding, held of record by 59 stockholders.

The name, address and telephone number of our stock transfer agent is Wells Fargo Shareowner Services; 1110 Centre
Pointe Curve, Suite 101, Mendota Heights, MN 55120-4101; 1 (800) 689-8788.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

We have set forth in the following table certain information regarding our common stock beneficially owned by (i)
each stockholder we know to be the beneficial owner of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock, (ii) each of our
directors and named executive officers, and (iii) all executive officers and directors as a group. Generally, a person is
deemed to be a “beneficial owner” of a security if that person has or shares the power to dispose or to direct the
disposition of such security. A person is also deemed to be a beneficial owner of any securities of which the person
has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days pursuant to options, warrants, conversion privileges or
similar rights. Unless otherwise indicated, ownership information is as of November 1, 2014, and is based on
9,490,435 shares of common stock outstanding on that date.

Name and Address of Beneficial
Owner (1) Common Stock

Shares
Underlying
Options

Number of
Shares
Beneficially
Owned

Percentage
of
Class (2)

Directors and Executive Officers
Nicolaus G. Alexopoulos - 25,980 25,980 *
John R. Gaulding - 19,012 19,012 *
Robert J. Griffin - 25,980 25,980 *
Thomas Iwanski - 25,065 25,065 *
Rex S. Jackson - 15,768 15,768 *
Michael Leabman 80,201 96,600 176,801 1.8 %
Stephen R. Rizzone - 241,335 241,335 2.5 %
Directors and Executive Officers as a group (9 persons) 80,803 477,760 558,563 5.6 %

Five Percent Stockholders
DvineWave Holdings LLC (3) 1,924,812 - 1,924,812 20.3 %
Gregory Brewer (4) 668,337 - 668,337 7.0 %

* Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1.0%.

(1) The address of each officer and director is 3590 North First Street, Suite 210, San Jose, CA, 95134.

(2)

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is generally determined by voting powers and/or investment powers with respect to securities.
Unless otherwise noted, the shares of common stock listed above are owned of record by each individual named as
beneficial owner and such individual has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares of common
stock owned by each of them.
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(3)

DvineWave Holdings LLC was formed by the parents of Mr. Leabman to make an investment in the Company
when it was founded. DvineWave Irrevocable Trust dated December 12, 2012 is the manager of DvineWave
Holdings LLC. Gregory Tamkin, the trustee of the DvineWave Irrevocable Trust, has sole voting and investment
power with respect to the entity’s shares of common stock. The address is for DvineWave Holdings LLC is 8010
East Cedar Ave, Denver CO 80230.

(4)
Represents shares held by Absolute Ventures, LLC. Gregory Brewer has sole voting and investment power with
respect to Absolute Ventures, LLC’s shares of common stock. The address for Mr. Brewer is 1599 Greenville Road,
Livermore, CA 94568.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Our shares of common stock are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market. Our determination of the independence of
directors is made using the definition of “independent” contained in the listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market.
On the basis of information solicited from each director, the board has determined that each of Dr. Alexopoulos, Mr.
Gaulding, Mr. Griffin and Mr. Jackson has no material relationship with the Company and is independent within the
meaning of such rules.
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SEC regulations define the related person transactions that require disclosure to include any transaction, arrangement
or relationship in which the amount involved exceeds the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of the
Company’s total assets at year end for the last two completed fiscal years in which we were or are to be a participant
and in which a related person had or will have a direct or indirect material interest. A related person is: (i) an
executive officer, director or director nominee of the Company, (ii) a beneficial owner of more than 5% of our
common stock, (iii) an immediate family member of an executive officer, director or director nominee or beneficial
owner of more than 5% of our common stock, or (iv) any entity that is owned or controlled by any of the foregoing
persons or in which any of the foregoing persons has a substantial ownership interest or control.

For the period from our inception, through the date of this prospectus (the “Reporting Period”), described below are
certain transactions or series of transactions between us and certain related persons.

On November 8, 2012, DvineWave Holdings LLC, an entity formed by the parents of Michael Leabman, our Chief
Technology Officer, to make an investment in the Company, purchased 1,924,812 shares of common stock in
exchange for $10,000.

On January 28, 2013, Mr. Leabman purchased 80,201 shares of common stock in exchange for $417.

On March 4, 2013, Absolute Ventures LLC, an affiliate of a former director of the Company, Greg Brewer, purchased
668,337 shares of common stock in exchange for $160,000.

On October 4, 2013, we entered into a Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease with ProSoft Engineering,
Inc. for our former principal office space located at 303 Ray Street, Pleasanton, CA 94566. The lease covered
approximately 3500 square feet of office and laboratory space and was originally scheduled to expire on June 4, 2014,
but its term was extended through September 4, 2014. The aggregate amount paid to ProSoft Engineering during the
term of the lease was approximately $86,200. Greg Brewer, a former member of our board of directors, is the owner
and founder of ProSoft Engineering, Inc.
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UNDERWRITING

We have entered into an underwriting agreement with the underwriters named below. Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. is
acting as lead book-running manager and as representative of the underwriters.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and
each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase, at the public offering price less the underwriting discounts and
commissions set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, the number of shares of common stock listed next to its
name in the following table:

Underwriter Number of Shares
Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.
Roth Capital Partners, LLC.
National Securities Corporation

Total

The underwriters are committed to purchase all the shares of common stock offered by us if they purchase any shares.
The underwriting agreement also provides that if an underwriter defaults on its purchase commitment, the purchase
commitments of non-defaulting underwriters may also be increased or this offering may be terminated.

The underwriters propose to offer the common stock directly to the public at the public offering price set forth on the
cover page of this prospectus and to certain dealers at that price less a concession not in excess of $ per share. Any
such dealers may resell shares to certain other brokers or dealers at a discount of up to $ per share from the public
offering price. After the public offering of the shares, this offering price and other selling terms may be changed by
the underwriters. Sales of shares made outside of the U.S. may be made by affiliates of the underwriters.

We have granted the underwriters an over-allotment option to purchase up to $3,000,000 of additional shares of
common stock from us to cover sales of shares by the underwriters which exceed the number of shares specified in the
table above. The underwriters have 30 days from the date of this prospectus to exercise this option to purchase
additional shares. If any shares are purchased with this option to purchase additional shares, the underwriters will
purchase shares in approximately the same proportion as shown in the table above. If any additional shares of
common stock are purchased, the underwriters will offer the additional shares on the same terms as those on which the
shares are being offered.
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The following table shows the underwriting discount that we are to pay to the underwriters in connection with this
offering. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment
option:

Per
Share

Total Without Exercise of
Over-Allotment Option

Total With Full Exercise
of Over-Allotment Option

Public Offering Price $ $ $
Underwriting Discounts and Commissions $ $ $
Proceeds, before Expenses, to Us $ $ $

We estimate that the total expenses of this offering, including registration, filing and listing fees, printing fees and
legal and accounting expenses, but excluding the underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately
$350,000, which will be paid by us. This amount includes up to $150,000 that we have agreed to reimburse the
underwriters for certain of their expenses.
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We have granted to Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. a right of first refusal for a period of 12 months from the closing of this
offering to provide certain financial advisory, underwriting, capital raising, and other services for which they may
receive fees. The amount of fees we pay to Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. will be based upon the prevailing market for
similar services rendered by global full-service investment banks for such transactions at such time.

We have agreed that we will not, for a period of 90 days after the date of the underwriting agreement between us and
the underwriters managing this offering and subject to certain exceptions, sell or register with the SEC or otherwise
dispose of, directly or indirectly, any of our equity securities (or any securities convertible into, exercisable or
exchangeable for our equity securities), except for the issuance of the shares of common stock being offered by this
prospectus and the issuance of shares, options or equity awards pursuant to our stock incentive plans or bonus plans as
described in this prospectus and in the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. We have agreed to
indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under the Securities Act, and
to contribute to payments that the underwriter may be required to make for these liabilities.

Our directors and executive officers have entered into lock-up agreements with the underwriters prior to the
commencement of this offering pursuant to which each of these persons, with limited exceptions, for a period of 90
days after the date of this prospectus, may not, without the prior written consent of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., (1) offer,
pledge, assign, encumber, announce the intention to sell, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase,
purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose
of, any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of our
common stock owned either of record or beneficially (as defined in the Exchange Act) by such person or entity on the
date of the lock-up agreement or thereafter, or (2) enter into any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in
part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of our common stock, whether any such transaction described in
clause (1) or (2) above is to be settled by delivery of our common stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise,
or publicly announce an intention to do any of the foregoing.

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may engage in stabilizing transactions, which involves making bids
for, purchasing and selling shares of common stock in the open market for the purpose of preventing or retarding a
decline in the market price of the common stock while this offering is in progress. These stabilizing transactions may
include making short sales of the common stock, which involves the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of
shares of common stock than they are required to purchase in this offering, and purchasing shares of common stock on
the open market to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales may be “covered” shorts, which are short positions
in an amount not greater than the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares referred to above, or may be “naked”
shorts, which are short positions in excess of that amount. The underwriters may close out any covered short position
either by exercising their option to purchase additional shares, in whole or in part, or by purchasing shares in the open
market. In making this determination, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available
for purchase in the open market compared to the price at which the underwriters may purchase shares through the
option to purchase additional shares. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are
concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the open market that could
adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering. To the extent that the underwriters create a naked short
position, they will purchase shares in the open market to cover the position.
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The underwriters have advised us that, pursuant to Regulation M of the Securities Act, they may also engage in other
activities that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the common stock, including the imposition of
penalty bids. This means that if the representative of the underwriters purchases common stock in the open market in
stabilizing transactions or to cover short sales, the representative can require the underwriters that sold those shares as
part of this offering to repay the underwriting discount received by them.
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These activities may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of the common stock or preventing or
retarding a decline in the market price of the common stock, and, as a result, the price of the common stock may be
higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If the underwriters commence these activities, they
may discontinue them at any time. The underwriters may carry out these transactions on the NASDAQ Capital
Market, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities,
which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment
management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the
underwriters and their affiliates have provided in the past to us and our affiliates and may provide from time to time in
the future certain commercial banking, financial advisory, investment banking and other services for us and such
affiliates in the ordinary course of their business, for which they have received and may continue to receive customary
fees and commissions. In addition, in the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and
their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities
(or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the
accounts of their customers, and such investment and securities activities may involve our securities and instruments.
The underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and publish or express
independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to
clients that they acquire, long or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Notice to Non-U.S. Investors

Belgium

The offering is exclusively conducted under applicable private placement exemptions and therefore it has not been and
will not be notified to, and this prospectus or any other offering material relating to the securities has not been and will
not be approved by, the Belgian Banking, Finance and Insurance Commission (“Commission bancaire, financière et
des assurances/Commissie voor het Bank-, Financie- en Assurantiewezen”). Any representation to the contrary is
unlawful.

Each underwriter has undertaken not to offer sell, resell, transfer or deliver directly or indirectly, any securities, or to
take any steps relating/ancillary thereto, and not to distribute or publish this prospectus or any other material relating
to the securities or to the offering in a manner which would be construed as: (a) a public offering under the Belgian
Royal Decree of 7 July 1999 on the public character of financial transactions; or (b) an offering of securities to the
public under Directive 2003/71/EC which triggers an obligation to publish a prospectus in Belgium. Any action
contrary to these restrictions will cause the recipient and the Company to be in violation of the Belgian securities laws.
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France

Neither this prospectus nor any other offering material relating to the securities has been submitted to the clearance
procedures of the Autorité des marchés financiers in France. The securities have not been offered or sold and will not
be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, to the public in France. Neither this prospectus nor any other offering
material relating to the securities has been or will be: (a) released, issued, distributed or caused to be released, issued
or distributed to the public in France; or (b) used in connection with any offer for subscription or sale of the securities
to the public in France. Such offers, sales and distributions will be made in France only: (i) to qualified investors
(investisseurs qualifiés) and/or to a restricted circle of investors (cercle restreint d’investisseurs), in each case investing
for their own account, all as defined in and in accordance with Articles L.411-2, D.411-1, D.411-2, D.734-1, D.744-1,
D.754-1 and D.764-1 of the French Code monétaire et financier; (ii) to investment services providers authorised to
engage in portfolio management on behalf of third parties; or (iii) in a transaction that, in accordance with article
L.411-2-II-1°-or-2°-or 3° of the French Code monétaire et financier and article 211-2 of the General Regulations
(Règlement Général) of the Autorité des marchés financiers, does not constitute a public offer (appel public à
l’épargne). Such securities may be resold only in compliance with Articles L.411-1, L.411-2, L.412-1 and L.621-8
through L.621-8-3 of the French Code monétaire et financier.

United Kingdom/Germany/Norway/The Netherlands

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive
(each, a “Relevant Member State”) an offer to the public of any securities which are the subject of the offering
contemplated by this prospectus may not be made in that Relevant Member State except that an offer to the public in
that Relevant Member State of any securities may be made at any time under the following exemptions under the
Prospectus Directive, if they have been implemented in that Relevant Member State: 
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(a)to legal entities which are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorised orregulated, whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

(b)
to any legal entity which has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during the last financial year;
(2) a total balance sheet of more than €43,000,000 and (3) an annual net turnover of more than €50,000,000, as shown
in its last annual or consolidated accounts;

(c)by the underwriters to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in theProspectus Directive); or

(d) in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of securities shall result in a requirement for the publication by the Company or any
underwriter of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer to the public” in relation to any securities in any Relevant
Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the
offer and any securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase any securities, as the same may
be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State and the
expression “Prospectus Directive” means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in
each Relevant Member State.

Each underwriter has represented, warranted and agreed that:

(a)

it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated
any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 (the FSMA)) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any securities in
circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Company; and

(b)it has complied with and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done byit in relation to the securities in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Israel
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In the State of Israel, the securities offered hereby may not be offered to any person or entity other than the following:

(a)a fund for joint investments in trust (i.e., mutual fund), as such term is defined in the Law for Joint Investments inTrust, 5754-1994, or a management company of such a fund;

(b)a provident fund as defined in Section 47(a)(2) of the Income Tax Ordinance of the State of Israel, or amanagement company of such a fund;

(c)

an insurer, as defined in the Law for Oversight of Insurance Transactions, 5741-1981, (d) a banking entity or
satellite entity, as such terms are defined in the Banking Law (Licensing), 5741-1981, other than a joint services
company, acting for their own account or fro the account of investors of the type listed in Section 15A(b) of the
Securities Law 1968;
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(d)
a company that is licensed as a portfolio manager, as such term is defined in Section 8(b) of the Law for the
Regulation of Investment Advisors and Portfolio Managers, 5755-1995, acting on its own account or for the
account of investors of the type listed in Section 15A(b) of the Securities Law 1968;

(e)a company that is licensed as an investment advisor, as such term is defined in Section 7(c) of the Law for theRegulation of Investment Advisors and Portfolio Managers, 5755-1995, acting on its own account;

(f)a company that is a member of the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange, acting on its own account or for the account ofinvestors of the type listed in Section 15A(b) of the Securities Law 1968;

(g) an underwriter fulfilling the conditions of Section 56(c) of the Securities Law, 5728-1968;

(h)
a venture capital fund (defined as an entity primarily involved in investments in companies which, at the time of
investment, (i) are primarily engaged in research and development or manufacture of new technological products
or processes and (ii) involve above-average risk);

(i)an entity primarily engaged in capital markets activities in which all of the equity owners meet one or more of theabove criteria; and

(j)

an entity, other than an entity formed for the purpose of purchasing securities in this offering, in which the
shareholders equity (including pursuant to foreign accounting rules, international accounting regulations and U.S.
generally accepted accounting rules, as defined in the Securities Law Regulations (Preparation of Annual Financial
Statements), 1993) is in excess of NIS 250 million.

Any offeree of the securities offered hereby in the State of Israel shall be required to submit written confirmation that
it falls within the scope of one of the above criteria. This prospectus will not be distributed or directed to investors in
the State of Israel who do not fall within one of the above criteria.

Italy

The offering of the securities offered hereby in Italy has not been registered with the Commissione Nazionale per la
Società e la Borsa (“CONSOB”) pursuant to Italian securities legislation and, accordingly, the securities offered hereby
cannot be offered, sold or delivered in the Republic of Italy (“Italy”) nor may any copy of this prospectus or any other
document relating to the securities offered hereby be distributed in Italy other than to professional investors (operatori
qualificati) as defined in Article 31, second paragraph, of CONSOB Regulation No. 11522 of 1 July, 1998 as
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subsequently amended. Any offer, sale or delivery of the securities offered hereby or distribution of copies of this
prospectus or any other document relating to the securities offered hereby in Italy must be made:

(a)
by an investment firm, bank or intermediary permitted to conduct such activities in Italy in accordance with
Legislative Decree No. 58 of 24 February 1998 and Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1 September 1993 (the “Banking
Act”);
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(b) in compliance with Article 129 of the Banking Act and the implementing guidelines of the Bank of Italy; and

(c)in compliance with any other applicable laws and regulations and other possible requirements or limitations whichmay be imposed by Italian authorities.

Sweden

This prospectus has not been nor will it be registered with or approved by Finansinspektionen (the Swedish Financial
Supervisory Authority). Accordingly, this prospectus may not be made available, nor may the securities offered
hereunder be marketed and offered for sale in Sweden, other than under circumstances which are deemed not to
require a prospectus under the Financial Instruments Trading Act (1991: 980).

Switzerland

The securities offered pursuant to this prospectus will not be offered, directly or indirectly, to the public in
Switzerland and this prospectus does not constitute a public offering prospectus as that term is understood pursuant o
art. 652a or art. 1156 of the Swiss Federal Code of Obligations. The Company has not applied for a listing of the
securities being offered pursuant to this prospectus on the SWX Swiss Exchange or on any other regulated securities
market, and consequently, the information presented in this prospectus does not necessarily comply with the
information standards set out in the relevant listing rules. The securities being offered pursuant to this prospectus have
not been registered with the Swiss Federal Banking Commission as foreign investment funds, and the investor
protection afforded to acquirers of investment fund certificates does not extend to acquirers of securities.

Investors are advised to contact their legal, financial or tax advisers to obtain an independent assessment of the
financial and tax consequences of an investment in securities.
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DILUTION

Our net tangible book value as of September 30, 2014 was $18,462,240, or $1.95 per share of common stock. Net
tangible book value per share represents total tangible assets less total liabilities, divided by the number of shares of
common stock outstanding. On a pro forma basis after giving effect to our sale of $20,000,000 of shares in this
offering at the public offering price of $ per share, after deducting the commissions and estimated offering expenses
payable by us, our net tangible book value as of September 30, 2014 would have been $ or $ per share. This represents
an immediate increase in net tangible book value of $ per share to existing stockholders and an immediate dilution in
net tangible book value of $ per share to investors in this offering. The following table illustrates this calculation.

Public offering price $
Net tangible book value per share as of September 30, 2014 $1.95
Increase per share attributable to this offering $
Pro forma tangible book value per share after this offering $
Dilution per share to new investors in this offering $

The following shares were not included in the above calculations:

·1,599,277 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under stock option agreements outstanding at September30, 2014 with a weighted average exercise price of $4.90 per share;

· 4,035 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under restricted stock units (“RSU”) agreements
issued pursuant to our 2014 Non-Employee Equity Compensation Plan as of September 30, 2014;

·342,534 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under restricted stock units (“RSU”) agreements issuedpursuant to our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan as of September 30, 2014;

·120,000 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under non-statutory RSUs agreements issued asinducement awards;

· 978,964 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under warrants and non-statutory stock options
outstanding at September 30, 2014 with a weighted average exercise price of $4.58 per share;

·428,987 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan as ofSeptember 30, 2014; and
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·211,184 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2014 Non-Employee EquityCompensation Plan as of September 30, 2014.
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LEGAL MATTERS

K&L Gates LLP, with an office at Hearst Tower, 47th Floor, 214 North Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina
28202, will pass upon the validity of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus and certain other legal
matters. Goodwin Procter LLP, with an office at 620 Eighth Avenue, New York, New York 10018, is legal counsel to
the underwriters in connection with this offering.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Energous Corporation as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 30, 2012 and for the period
October 30, 2012 (Inception) through December 31, 2013 included in this prospectus have been audited by Marcum
LLP, independent registered public accounting firm (which contain an explanatory paragraph related to our ability to
continue as a going concern as described in Note 2 to our financial statements) as set forth in their report. We have
included these financial statements in this prospectus in reliance upon the report of Marcum LLP, given on their
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act that registers the shares of
our common stock to be sold in this offering. Our SEC filings are and will become available to the public over the
Internet at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at its
public reference facilities at 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can also obtain copies of the documents
upon the payment of a duplicating fee to the SEC. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on
the operation of the public reference facilities.

This prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits and
schedules thereto. Some items are omitted in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. You should review
the information and exhibits included in the registration statement for further information about us and the securities
we are offering. Statements in this prospectus concerning any document we filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement or that we otherwise filed with the SEC are not intended to be comprehensive and are qualified by reference
to these filings. You should review the complete document to evaluate these statements.

DISCLOSURE OF COMMISSION POSITION ON INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES
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Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or
persons controlling the Company, we have been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore
unenforceable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

of Energous Corporation (f/k/a DvineWave Inc.)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Energous Corporation (f/k/a DvineWave Inc.) (a development
stage company) (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related statements of operations, changes
in stockholders’ deficit and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period from October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31,
2013.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Energous Corporation (a development stage company) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period from October 30, 2012 (inception)
through December 31, 2012 and for the period from October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 2013, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, at December 31, 2013, the Company is in its development
stage, has not yet generated revenues and is dependent upon future sources of equity or debt financing in order to fund
its operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management’s plans regarding those matters also are described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
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/s/ Marcum LLP
Marcum LLP
Melville, NY
March 21, 2014
except for Note 3
which is dated
November 12,
2014
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Energous Corporation

(f/k/a DvineWave Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2013 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,953,780 $994
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 127,197 -
Total current assets 2,080,977 994

Property and equipment, net 189,612 -
Deferred offering costs 88,319 -
Other assets 6,959 -
Total assets $2,365,867 $994

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $361,038 $1,875
Accrued expenses 243,623 10,406
Convertible promissory notes, net 829,298 -
Derivative liabilities 6,277,000 -
Total liabilities 7,710,959 12,281

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ deficit
Preferred Stock, $0.00001 par value, 0 and 5,000,000 shares authorized at December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively;  no shares issued or outstanding. - -

Common Stock, $0.00001 par value, 40,000,000 and 18,000,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively; 2,708,217 and 1,924,813 shares
issued and  outstanding at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

27 19

Additional paid-in capital 197,249 9,981
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (5,542,368) (21,287)
Total stockholders’ deficit (5,345,092) (11,287)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit $2,365,867 $994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Energous Corporation

(f/k/a DvineWave Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

For the Period
October 30, 2012
(Inception)
through
December 31,
2012

For the Period
October 30, 2012
(Inception)
through
December 31,
2013

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS:
Operating expenses:
Derivative instrument issuance expenses $ 887,062 $ - $ 887,062
Research and development expenses 2,109,890 17,103 2,126,993
General and administrative expenses 1,204,896 4,184 1,209,080
Marketing expenses 233,622 - 233,622
Loss from operations (4,435,470 ) (21,287 ) (4,456,757 )
Other (expense) income:
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities (177,000 ) - (177,000 )
Interest expense (908,611 ) - (908,611 )
Other (expense) income, net (1,085,611 ) - (1,085,611 )
Net loss $ (5,521,081 ) $ (21,287 ) $ (5,542,368 )
Basic and diluted net loss per common share $ (2.11 ) $ (0.01 )
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and
diluted 2,617,022 1,924,813

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Energous Corporation

(f/k/a DvineWave Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Common Stock Additional
Paid-in

Deficit  
Accumulated
During the
Development

Total
Stockholders'

Shares Amount Capital Stage Deficit

Balance, October 30, 2012 (inception) - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Common stock sold on November 8, 2012 to third
party investor at $0.0052 per share 1,924,813 19 9,981 - 10,000

Net loss for the period from October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2012 - - - (21,287 ) (21,287 )

Balance, December 31, 2012 1,924,813 19 9,981 (21,287 ) (11,287 )

Common stock sold on January 28, 2013 to
founder at $0.0052 per share 80,201 1 416 - 417

Common stock sold on March 4, 2013 to affiliate
of a director at $0.24 per share 668,338 7 159,993 - 160,000

Common stock sold on May 7, 2013 to third party
 investor at $0.24 per share 20,051 - 4,800 - 4,800

Restricted common stock sold on May 14, 2013
under the 2013 Stock Plan of DvineWave, Inc., to
consultant at $0.40 per share

88,882 1 35,463 - 35,464

Repurchase and retirement of restricted common
stock from consultant on November 30, 2013 at
$0.40 per share

(74,068 ) (1 ) (29,552 ) - (29,553 )

Stock-based compensation - - 16,148 - 16,148

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2013 - - - (5,521,081 ) (5,521,081 )

Balance, December 31, 2013 2,708,217 $ 27 $197,249 $ (5,542,368 ) $ (5,345,092 )
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Energous Corporation

(f/k/a DvineWave Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year
Ended
December
31, 2013

For the Period
October 30, 2012
(inception)
through
December 31,
2012

For the Period
October 30, 2012
(inception)
through
December
31, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (5,521,081 ) $ (21,287 ) $ (5,542,368 )
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,717 - 4,717
Stock based compensation 16,148 - 16,148
Amortization of debt discount 705,289 - 705,289
Warrant expense 724,000 - 724,000
Change is fair market value of derivative liabilities 177,000 - 177,000
Write off of abandoned trademark 4,725 - 4,725
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (127,197 ) - (127,197 )
Other assets (6,959 ) - (6,959 )
Accounts payable 359,163 1,875 361,038
Accrued expenses 233,217 10,406 243,623
Net cash used in operating activities (3,430,978 ) (9,006 ) (3,439,984 )

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (194,329 ) - (194,329 )
Costs of trademark (4,725 ) - (4,725 )
Net cash used in investing activities (199,054 ) - (199,054 )

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the sale of common stock 200,681 10,000 210,681
Payment of deferred offering costs (88,319 ) - (88,319 )
Repurchase of restricted common stock (29,553 ) - (29,553 )
Proceeds from the sale of senior secured convertible notes 5,500,009 - 5,500,009
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,582,818 10,000 5,592,818

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,952,786 994 1,953,780
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 994 - -
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Cash and cash equivalents - ending 1,953,780 994 1,953,780

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 - Business Organization, Nature of Operations

Energous Corporation (f/k/a DvineWave Inc.) (the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware on October 30, 2012
(inception). The Company is a development stage technology company focused on developing a solution to delivering
a wireless charging system, as a means of providing convenient, adaptive wireless power charging capabilities to low
power fixed and mobile devices, such as mobile phones, tablets, toys, videogame controllers, watches, remote
controls, smoke alarms, window covering deployment and retraction motors, installed sensors and night and
emergency lighting fixtures that use or are capable of using a rechargeable battery. The Company is targeting both
consumer and commercial enterprise markets that use such rechargeable fixed and mobile devices.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company had not yet completed the development of its product and has not yet
recorded any revenues. Since inception, the Company’s primary activities have consisted of developing its business
plan, raising capital, recruiting and hiring its executive team and developing its technology. To date, these activities
have been funded through sales of common stock and the sale of Senior Secured Convertible Notes (“Convertible
Notes”) (See Note 7, Private Placement).

The Company is considered to be in the development stage, and as such, the Company’s financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) topic 915, “Development Stage Entities.”
The Company is subject to all of the risks associated with development stage companies.

Note 2 – Going Concern and Management Plans

As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s cash on hand was $1,953,780. The Company has not generated revenues
since its inception and has incurred net losses for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013
of $5,521,081, $21,287 and $5,542,368, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company has
met its liquidity requirements principally through the private placement of convertible notes.
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company had a working capital deficiency and a stockholders’ deficit of $5,629,982 and
$5,345,092, respectively.

The Company expects that the cash it has available as of March 12, 2014 will fund its operations only until May,
2014.  The Company intends to raise additional capital through its initial public offering (“IPO”), though there is no
assurance that it will be able to do so. If the Company is unable to raise additional capital, the Company may have to
curtail its research and development efforts, delay repayments of its Convertible Notes, delay payments to vendors,
and/or initiate cost reductions, which would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations. These matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The accompanying financial statement do not include any adjustments that might be necessary if the
Company is unable to continue as a going concern.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3 – Reverse Split

All share and per share amounts within these financial statements have been retroactively adjusted to reflect a
1-for-3.99 reverse split of the Company’s issued and outstanding common stock, as approved on March 26, 2014 by
the Company’s stockholders and Board of Directors.

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars and have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”), and pursuant to the accounting
and disclosure rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported
expenses during the reporting periods.

The Company’s significant estimates and assumptions include the valuation of the Company’s common stock and the
valuation of derivative financial instruments, the amortization of deferred financing costs, the amortization and
recoverability of capitalized patent costs and useful lives of long-lived assets, and income tax expense, some of these
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judgments can be subjective and complex, and, consequently, actual results may differ from these estimates. Although
the Company believes that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, they are based upon information available at
the time the estimates and assumptions were made. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company maintains cash in bank accounts, consisting solely of deposits held at major banks, which, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. Cash equivalents include investments in open ended money market accounts held
at the same major banks. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and periodically evaluates the
credit worthiness of the financial institutions and has determined the credit exposure to be negligible.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation, which is recorded using the straight line
method at rates sufficient to charge the cost of depreciable assets to operations over their estimated useful lives, which
range from 3 to 7 years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

F-7
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Deferred Offering Costs

Deferred offering costs consist principally of legal, accounting and other fees incurred through the balance sheet date
that are directly related to the Company’s IPO and that will be charged to stockholders’ equity upon the receipt of the
capital raised.

Trademarks

Legal and filing fees incurred in connection with the registration of trademarks are capitalized.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses are charged to operations as incurred. For internally developed patents, all costs
incurred to the point when a patent application is to be filed are expended as incurred as research and development
expense. Patent application costs, generally legal costs, are expensed as research and development costs until such
time as the future economic benefits of such patents become more certain. The Company incurred research and
development costs of $2,109,890, $17,103 and $2,126,993 for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period
October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and during the period from October 31, 2012 (inception)
through December 31, 2013, respectively.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets
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The Company reviews for the impairment of long-lived assets, including trademarks, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be
recognized when estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is
less than its carrying amount. Included in general and administrative expenses for the write off of an abandoned
trademark is $4,725, $0 and $4,725 for the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2012 and during the period from October 31, 2012 (inception) through December
31, 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of items that have
been included or excluded in the financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
on the basis of the difference between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their respective financial reporting
amounts (“temporary differences”) at enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012,
the Company had approximately $2,108,000 and $17,000, respectively, of research and development expenses
capitalized for federal income tax purposes, with amortization commencing upon the Company receiving an economic
benefit from the related research. For the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012, $4,000 of
organization costs were capitalized and will be amortized for federal income tax purposes over 15 years. Accordingly,
as of December 31, 2013, the Company had approximately $2,263,391 gross federal and state net operating loss
carryovers (“NOLs”). For the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through
December 31, 2012, the deferred tax assets in connection with the net operating loss carryover, the research and
development costs and the organizational costs were fully reserved, and the Company’s effective tax rate was 0%.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Income Taxes, continued

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the future generation of taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income,
and taxing strategies in making this assessment. Based on this assessment, management has established a full
valuation allowance against all of the net deferred tax assets for each period, since it is more likely than not that all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Tax benefits are recognized only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by
tax authorities. The amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent
likely to be realized upon settlement. A liability for “unrecognized tax benefits” is recorded for any tax benefits claimed
in the Company’s tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards. As of December 31, 2013,
no liability for unrecognized tax benefits was required to be reported. The guidance also discusses the classification of
related interest and penalties on income taxes. The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties on uncertain
tax positions as a component of income tax expense. No interest or penalties were recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2013 or for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012.

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the
weighted average number of common shares and, if dilutive, potential common shares outstanding during the period.
Potential common shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of the conversion of
the Company’s convertible notes and warrants (using the if-converted method). The computation of basic loss per
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share for the year ended December 31, 2013 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31,
2012 excludes potentially dilutive securities of 3,525,907 and 0, respectively, because their inclusion would be
antidilutive. As a result, the computations of net loss per share for each period presented is the same for both basic and
fully diluted.

Potentially dilutive securities outlined in the table below have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss
per share, because the effect of their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

For the Year Ended
December 31,

For the Period October 30,
2012 (Inception) Through
December 31,

2013 2012
Convertible Notes – principal 2,650,858 -
Convertible Notes – accrued interest 100,227 -
Consulting Warrant to purchase common stock 278,228 -
Financing Warrant to purchase common stock 220,905 -
Options to purchase common stock 275,689 -
Total potentially dilutive securities 3,525,907 -
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Fair Value Measurements

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses, approximate fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Fair value is defined as an exit price, representing the amount that would be received upon the sale of an asset or
payment to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. Fair value is a market-based
measurement that is determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or
liability. A three-tier fair value hierarchy is used to prioritize the inputs in measuring fair value as follows:  

Level
1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level
2

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level
3 Significant unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by market data.

The assets or liability’s fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following table provides a summary of the assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Total Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for

Quoted
Prices for
Similar
Assets or

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)
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Identical
Assets or
Liabilities
(Level 1)

Liabilities in
Active
Markets
(Level 2)

Derivative Liabilities:
December 31, 2012 $- $ - $ - $ -
December 31, 2013:
Conversion Feature $5,573,000 $ - $ - $ 5,573,000
Financing Warrant 175,000 - - 175,000
Consulting Warrant 529,000 - - 529,000
Total $6,277,000 $ - $ - $ 6,277,000
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Fair Value Measurements, continued

The following table sets forth a summary of the changes in the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2013

For the Period 
October 30, 2012
(inception) Through
December 31, 2012

Beginning balance $ - $ -
Aggregate fair value of conversion feature and warrants upon issuance 6,100,000 -
Change in fair value of conversion feature and warrants 177,000 -
Ending balance $ 6,277,000 $ -

The conversion feature of the Convertible Notes was measured at fair value using a Monte Carlo simulation and is
classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. The warrant liabilities for the Financing Warrant and the
Consulting Warrant were measured at fair value using a Monte Carlo simulation and are classified within Level 3 of
the valuation hierarchy. The significant assumptions and valuation methods that the Company used to determine fair
value and the change in fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instruments are discussed in Note 7 – Private
Placement.

Level 3 liabilities are valued using unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the
measurement of the fair value of the derivate liabilities. For fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer determined its valuation policies and procedures. The
development and determination of the unobservable inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements and fair value
calculations are the responsibility of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer with support from the Company’s
consultants and which are approved by the Chief Financial Officer.
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Level 3 financial liabilities consist of the derivative liabilities for which there is no current market for these securities
such that the determination of fair value requires significant judgment or estimation. Changes in fair value
measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are analyzed each period based on changes in
estimates or assumptions and recorded as appropriate.

The Company uses a Monte Carlo model to value Level 3 financial liabilities at inception and on subsequent valuation
dates. This simulation incorporates transaction details such as the Company’s stock price, contractual terms, maturity,
risk free rates, as well as, volatility. The Company also used a binomial simulation and Black-Scholes economic
model as supplemental valuation tools in order to validate the reasonableness of the results of the Monte Carlo
simulation when measuring the Financing Warrant and the Consulting Warrant.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Fair Value Measurements, continued

A significant decrease in the volatility or a significant decrease in the Company’s stock price, in isolation, would result
in a significantly lower fair value measurement. Changes in the values of the derivative liabilities are recorded in
Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities within Other Expense (Income) on the Company’s Statements of
Operations.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were no transfers in or out of level 3 from other levels in the fair value
hierarchy.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 815, the Company presented the conversion feature and warrant liabilities
at fair value on its balance sheet, with the corresponding changes in fair value recorded in the Company’s statement of
operations for the applicable reporting periods.

The fair value of the Company’s common stock was determined by a third party valuation consultant, and was derived
from the valuation of the Company using a methodology which back-solved to the fair value of the common stock on
May 16, 2013 and December 31, 2013, based upon the Company’s capitalization, existing dilutive securities and the
proceeds received from the issuance of the Convertible Notes. For the purposes of this back-solve computation,
management assumed that the Convertible Notes would convert at $2.07 per share (the floor level), and that the
Financing Warrant would have an exercise price of $2.49 per common share or, 120% of the exercise price of the
Convertible Notes.

Management determined that the results of its valuations are reasonable.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Convertible Instruments

The Company accounts for hybrid contracts that feature conversion options in accordance with ASC 815 “Derivatives
and Hedging Activities,” (“ASC 815”) and ASC 480 “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity” (“ASC 480”), which require
companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account for them as free standing
derivative financial instruments according to certain criteria. The criteria includes circumstances in which (i) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, (ii) the hybrid instrument that embodies both the embedded
derivative instrument and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable generally
accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (iii) a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a derivative instrument.
The Company accounts for convertible instruments which have been determined to be free standing derivative
financial instruments (when the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should be bifurcated
from their host instruments) in accordance with ASC 815.  Under ASC 815, a portion of the proceeds received upon
the issuance of the hybrid contract are allocated to the fair value of the derivative. The derivative is subsequently
marked to market at each reporting date based on current fair value, with the changes in fair value reported in results
of operations.

Conversion options that contain variable settlement features such as provisions to adjust the conversion price upon
subsequent issuances of equity or equity linked securities at exercise prices more favorable than that featured in the
hybrid contract generally result in their bifurcation from the host instrument.

The Company accounts for convertible debt instruments, when the Company has determined that the embedded
conversion options should not be bifurcated from their host instruments, in accordance with ASC 470-20 “Debt with
Conversion and Other Options”. The Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertible notes for the intrinsic
value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences between the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded
in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Common Stock Purchase Warrants and Other Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company classifies as equity any contracts that (i) require physical settlement or net-share settlement or (ii)
provides a choice of net-cash settlement or settlement in the Company’s own shares (physical settlement or net-share
settlement) providing that such contracts are indexed to the Company's own stock as defined in ASC 815-40
"Contracts in Entity's Own Equity" (“ASC 815-40”). The Company classifies as assets or liabilities any contracts that
(i) require net-cash settlement (including a requirement to net cash settle the contract if an event occurs and if that
event is outside the Company’s control) or (ii) gives the counterparty a choice of net-cash settlement or settlement in
shares (physical settlement or net-share settlement).  The Company assesses classification of common stock purchase
warrants and other free standing derivatives at each reporting date to determine whether a change in classification
between assets and liabilities or equity is required.

Management’s Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The Company evaluates events that have occurred after the balance sheet date of December 31, 2013, through the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued. Based upon the review, other than described in Note 12 –
Subsequent Event, the Company did not identify any recognized or non-recognized subsequent events that would have
required adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

Note 5 – Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are as follows:
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As of December
31,
2013 2012

Computer software $114,876 -
Computer hardware 28,779 -
Furniture and fixtures 35,919 -
Leasehold improvements 14,755 -

194,329 -
Less – Accumulated depreciation (4,717 ) -
Total property and equipment, net $189,612 -

Total depreciation and amortization expense of the Company’s property and equipment was $4,717, $0 and $4,717, for
the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and for
the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013, respectively. For the year ended December 31,
2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2013, depreciation and amortization charged to general and administrative expenses
was $3,102, $0 and $3,102 and charged to research and development expense was $1,615, $0 and $1,615,
respectively.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6 – Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

As of December
31,
2013 2012

Accrued interest payable $207,945 $-
Accrued compensation 19,894 -
Other accrued expenses 15,784 10,406
Total $243,623 $10,406

Note 7 – Private Placement

Senior Secured Convertible Notes

On May 16, 2013, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “Securities Purchase Agreement”)
with accredited investors (the “Investors”), pursuant to which the Company sold an aggregate of (i) $5,500,009 principal
amount of senior secured convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”). In connection with the sale of the Convertible
Notes (the “Bridge Financing”), the Company entered into a registration rights agreement (the “Registration Rights
Agreement”) and a security agreement (the “Security Agreement”) with the Investors. The closing of the Bridge
Financing was completed on May 16, 2013. The Convertible Notes bear interest at 6% per annum and mature on
August 16, 2014.

The principal and interest of the Convertible Notes are convertible into the Company’s common stock at a conversion
price between $2.07 and $4.14 per share depending on the facts and circumstances at the time of the conversion (see
below). Upon issuance, the Convertible Notes bear simple interest at 6% per annum, and upon the occurrence of any
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specified event of default, the Convertible Notes would bear interest at 12% per annum. The Convertible Notes may
be prepaid or converted into Common Stock with consent of the holder or the holders of a majority of the principal
then outstanding under all the Convertible Notes (the "Required Holders") and upon certain events constituting a
change in control of the Company. The Convertible Notes are required to be converted upon a qualifying initial public
offering of at least $10,000,000 (the “IPO”), if any, in which case the conversion price is to be equal to 50% of the price
to the public in such offering (but not more than $4.14 or less than $2.07 per share). A Convertible Note may also be
converted in certain circumstances at the election of the holder of the Convertible Note in connection with a financing
that is not an initial public offering, in which case the conversion price is to be equal to 50% of the price paid by the
investors in such financing (but not more than $4.14 or less than $2.07 per share). In the event of an optional
conversion by the holder of a Convertible Note during a continuing event of default, the conversion price would be
$2.07; otherwise the optional conversion price would be $4.14. The conversion price under the Convertible Notes is
further subject to adjustment in the event of stock splits, combinations or the like and upon certain other events, all as
provided in the Convertible Notes.

The aggregate amount of accrued interest on the Convertible Notes was $207,945 and $0 as of December 31, 2013
and December 31, 2012, respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the principal and accrued interest on the Convertible
Notes were convertible into 2,650,858 and 100,227 shares of the Company’s common stock, respectively, assuming a
conversion price of $2.07 per share.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7 – Private Placement, continued

Accounting for the Senior Secured Convertible Notes

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Notes, the conversion price is subject to adjustment in the event of an IPO,
other financing and upon certain other events. The embedded conversion feature was not clearly and closely related to
the host instrument and was bifurcated from the host Convertible Notes as a derivative, principally because the
instrument’s variable exercise price terms would not qualify as being indexed to the Company’s own common stock.
Accordingly, this conversion feature instrument has been classified as a derivative liability in the accompanying
balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.  Derivative liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and are then re-valued
at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings during the reporting period.

The Company determined that the initial fair value of the embedded conversion option was $5,376,000.  From the
gross proceeds upon the issuance of the Convertible Notes of $5,500,009, the Company deducted in full the fair value
of the embedded conversion feature of $5,376,000 as a debt discount, as shown below. The debt discount is being
amortized under the effective interest method over the term of the Convertible Notes. 

Face value of the Convertible Notes $5,500,009
Discount-fair value of embedded conversion feature (5,376,000)
Proceeds attributable to the Convertible Notes $124,009

The Company calculated the fair value of the embedded conversion feature of the Convertible Notes using a Monte
Carlo simulation, with the observable assumptions as provided in the table below. The significant unobservable inputs
used in the fair value measurement of the reporting entity’s embedded conversion feature are expected stock prices,
levels of trading and liquidity of the Company stock. Significant increases in the expected stock prices and expected
liquidity would result in a significantly higher fair value measurement.  Significant increases in either the probability
or severity of default of the host instrument would result in a significantly lower fair value measurement. 
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As of
May 16,
2013 December 31, 2013

Stock price on valuation date $1.68 $ 1.68
Conversion price 2.07 2.07
Term (years) 1.25 .26
Expected volatility 60 % 60 %
Dividend yield 0 % 0 %
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 0.79 % 1.75 %
Trials 20,000 20,000
Aggregate fair value $5,376,000 $ 5,573,000

The amortization of debt discount related to the Convertible Notes was $705,289, $0 and $705,289, respectively, for
the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2012, and for
the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2013, the debt discount will
be amortized over a remaining period of 0.6 years. The derivative liability related to the embedded conversion feature
is revalued at each reporting period.  During the year ended December 31, 2013, for the period October 30, 2012
(inception) through December 31, 2012 and for the period October 30, 2012 (inception) through December 31, 2013,
the Company recorded an increase of $197,000, $0 and $197,000, respectively, in the fair value of the derivative
liability for the conversion feature of the Convertible Notes, which was recorded as a change in the fair value of
derivative liabilities within the statement of operations.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7 – Private Placement, continued

Placement Agent Agreement

On January 23, 2013, the Company entered into an agreement (the “Placement Agent Agreement”) with MDB Capital
Group, Inc. (“MDB”), pursuant to which the Company appointed MDB to act as the Company’s placement agent in
connection with the sale of the Company’s securities (“Offering or Offerings”). Specifically, MDB was the placement
agent in connection with the sale of its Convertible Notes. The Placement Agent Agreement had an initial term of 180
days, and was renewed automatically upon the expiration of its initial term, after which it will continue in effect until
it is terminated by either party with 60 days written notice to the other party.

In connection with the sale of the Convertible Notes, the Company paid MDB a cash fee of $538,393 and sold to
MDB for $1,000 in cash, a warrant issued on May 16, 2013 (the “Financing Warrant”) to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock. The Financing Warrant was fully vested upon issuance, has a term of five years and may
not be exercised until six months after the consummation of a qualifying firm commitment underwritten initial public
offering. Pursuant to the terms of the Financing Warrant, the aggregate exercise price is fixed at $550,000, with the
per share exercise price determined based upon 120% of the conversion price of the Convertible Notes upon the
consummation of the IPO, or upon other events under which the Convertible Notes may convert. As of December 31,
2013, the Financing Warrant is exercisable into 220,905 shares of the Company’s common stock, respectively,
assuming an exercise price of $2.49 per share (or 120% of the Convertible Notes conversion price of $2.07 per share)

In addition, in the event of a non-liquid exit transaction, as defined in the Financing Warrant agreement, the holder of
the Financing Warrant may put the Financing Warrant back to the Company for a cash settlement at a fair value
amount to be determined by appraisal and agreed to by both parties.

MDB shall have certain registration rights with respect to the common stock issued upon exercise of the Financing
Warrant, including a one-time demand registration right with respect to such common stock.
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Consulting Agreement

On January 23, 2013, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with MDB (the “Consulting Agreement”),
pursuant to which MDB agreed to provide financial, strategic and intellectual property advisory services. The
Consulting Agreement had an initial term of 180 days, and was renewed automatically upon the expiration of its initial
term, after which it will continue in effect until it is terminated by either party with 30 days written notice to the other
party.

As consideration for services provided under the Consulting Agreement prior to May 16, 2013, the Company sold to
MDB for $1,500 in cash, a warrant (the “Consulting Warrant”) for the purchase of an aggregate of 278,228 shares of the
Company’s common stock.

The Consulting Warrant was fully vested upon issuance, has a term of five years, an exercise price of $0.04 per share
and may not be exercised until six months after the consummation of a qualifying firm commitment underwritten
initial public offering. The Consulting Warrant may be exercised on a cashless basis. In addition, in the event of a
non-liquid exit transaction, as defined in the Consulting Warrant, the holder of the Consulting Warrant may put the
Consulting Warrant back to the Company for a cash settlement at a fair value amount to be determined by appraisal
and agreed to by both parties.

MDB shall have certain registration rights with respect to the common stock issued upon exercise of the Consulting
Warrant, including a one-time demand registration right with respect to such common stock.
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ENERGOUS CORPORATION

(F/K/A DvineWave, Inc.)

(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7 – Private Placement, continued

Accounting for the Financing Warrant and the Consulting Warrant

The Company determined, based upon authoritative guidance, that both the Financing Warrant and the Consulting
Warrant qualified as derivative instruments.  Accordingly, these instruments have been classified as derivative
liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet as of December 31, 2013.  Derivative liabilities are initially recorded at
fair value and are then re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings during the
reporting period.

The Company calculated the fair value of the Financing Warrant and the Consulting Warrant using a Monte Carlo
simulation, with the observable assumptions as provided in the table below.   The significant unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement of the reporting entity’s Financing Warrant and the Consulting Warrant are expected
stock prices, levels of trading and liquidity of the Company’s common stock. Significant increases in the expected
stock prices and expected liquidity would result in a significantly higher fair value measurement.  Significant
increases in either the probability or severity of default of the host instrument would result in a significantly lower fair
value measurement. 

Provided below are the principal assumptions used in the measurement of the fair values of the Financings Warrant
and the Consulting Warrant as of May 16, 2013 and December 31, 2013.

As of May 16, 2012 As of December
31, 2013

Financing
Warrant

Consulting
Warrant

Financing
Warrant

Consulting
Warrant

Stock price on valuation date $1.68 $ 1.68 $1.68 $ 1.68
Exercise price $2.49 $ 0.04 $2.49 $ 0.04
Term (years) 5.00 5.00 4.38 4.38
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Expected volatility 60 %
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